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Chairman’s Statement

ITRBES

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of Pan
Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Central Government of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) has placed major emphasis on measures to achieve the
development of energy saving and emissions reduction in the
PRC. Within the Twelfth Five-Year Plan programme, energy-
saving and environmental protection (“EP”) has been designated
as one of seven key emerging industries by the Central
Government. Enterprises were attracted to invest in the industry
with the strong support from the Central Government. However,
intense competition and rising raw material and labour costs
have posed challenges to the EP industry during the year under
review. The Group’s business operation was also affected by
these trends and recorded a loss.

Although the EP industry has experienced unsettled
conditions in the past few years, the strong support through
the implementation of favourable national policies has
presented immense development potential and created bright
prospects for the industry. At such, the management has
made adjustments in its business strategy based on prevailing
market conditions. The Group is continuing to focus on the
development of flue gas and waste water treatment businesses
but will be more prudent in selecting suitable projects to
facilitate stable business development. At the same time, the
Group is bolstering its efforts in developing the eco-friendly
construction materials business and expanding the scale of its
business in wood wool cement board (“WWCB?”). These efforts
not only would advance the Group’s business performance, but
should also help enhance peoples’ living environment, standard
of living and contribute to future green development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group achieved
a total turnover of RMB410.8 million, a decrease of 13.7%
compared with last year (2011: RMB476.0 million), mainly due
to intense competition in the market. Affected by rising costs,
the Group recorded a reduced gross profit of RMB44.6 million
(2011: RMB60.0 million) and a gross profit margin of 10.9%
(2011: 12.6%) during the year. On the other hand, the new eco-
friendly construction materials business just started generating
revenue for the Group in the fourth quarter of the financial year
2012, and yet the amount of such revenue was still small as
compared to the increasing expenses incurred on development
of such business for the whole financial year 2012. The Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB30.2 million (2011: profit of RMB9.5 million). The loss
per share was RMB3.77 cents (2011: earnings per share of
RMB1.19 cents).

PROSPECTS

Eco-friendly construction materials business - a new
growth driver with huge potential

Energy-conserving construction is an important element of the
Twelfth Five-Year Plan programme. The Central Government
is striving to accelerate the wide application of renewable
energy resources in the construction industry, and promote the
development and popularity of green construction. A range of
policy initiatives were introduced by the government during the
year. For example the “Guide on Energy Conservation Reform
of Current Residential Buildings” announced by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of China stipulates the
implementation of energy-conserving residential construction
reform in four areas including walls and roofing, heating
systems, heat pipe networks and integrated energy saving.
The Central Government is also imposing mandatory energy-
saving standards on the construction of new buildings in cities
and towns during the Twelfth Five-year Plan period, so as to
increase the proportion of eco-friendly buildings to more than
30% by 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

In this regard, the Group has actively expanded into the eco-
friendly construction materials business. It has introduced six
EP wallboard production lines from the Netherlands to produce
WWCB and large wall components, each with an annual
capacity of approximately 140,000 m®. WWCB is an eco-friendly
inorganic energy-conserving construction material that is made
from cement, eco-friendly fast growing timber, and non-toxic
chemical addictives amalgamated through a highly pressurised
process. This material is widely used overseas because of its
distinctive heat retention, fire resistant and insect repellant
properties, as well as being sound-proof, moisture-proof and
mould-proof. It also does not contain formaldehyde or any
other volatile organic compounds. The benefits of WWCB make
it ideal for renovation and wall construction, in particular, for
high-end residential and commercial buildings requiring high
durability and energy saving in regions with greater weather and
temperature fluctuations.

Among the six production lines, five are standard production
lines that can produce WWCB of varying thickness from
10 to 100mm. The other large wall component production
line principally manufactures 3m x 6m x 40cm large wall
components which can be installed directly. It is the most
advanced and fully automated production line in the world.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

Two standard production lines began operation in 2012 and
mainly manufacture 15 to 76mm thick boards in meeting market
demand. During the year under review, the Group secured
orders from overseas which started to contribute gross profit to
the segment. The installation of three more standard production
lines procured in late 2011 is expected to be completed in
2013. The additional capacity should further optimise the
Group’s workflow and boost production efficiency.

In addition, the large wall component production line completed
its standard testing after the 2013 Chinese New Year. The
engineering staff is starting trial production of products of 30cm
and 22cm thickness in April. These products are exclusively
produced by the Group and designed based on climate
requirements in the PRC.

The Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the
PRC approved WWCB as a standard construction material with
effect from 1 August 2012. The Group continued to work with
large research institutes including Jiangsu Research Institute of
the Building Science Co., Ltd. (“JRIBS”) and China Academy
of Building Research Institute of Building Design to test and
verify the shape and specifications of the boards in compliance
with the national construction requirements, and to optimise
the specifications of the WWCB. The partners also provide
working guidance for the Group’s pilot and demonstration
projects aiming to enhance the recognition of the products
and such projects in the PRC. The Group is drafting the
construction standards and commissioning standards for the
applications of the products, and is applying for Grade A Fire
Resistant Standard for wall materials, and expects to obtain the
certifications in the first half of 2013.

The Group has already captured market attention through the
completion of several demonstration projects in key targeted
cities for development such as Shanghai, Yixing and Xiamen.
At the same time, it is evaluating joint projects with potential
customers, including government authorities and property
developers. Several sample products have been sent for testing
with the quotations submitted for reference. Looking ahead, in
addition to building more demonstration projects in the PRC,
the Group will also develop markets overseas to further promote
this material.

As the market has begun to realize the features and benefits
of WWCB, the Group believes this product has huge potential
for future growth. The Group has established a sound sales
network through its self-operated sales platform and distributors
to promote this quality eco-friendly construction material which
is highly recognised and accepted in overseas markets. The
Group expects that the business will be an important income
source when WWCB becomes more widely accepted and
utilised in the market within the next five years.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

Water and flue gas treatment business - continues to bring
stable revenue

In the “Energy-saving and Environmental Protection Industry
Development Programme under the Twelfth Five-Year Plan,” the
Central Government indicated that the total production value of
the energy-saving and EP industry will reach RMB4,500 billion
by 2015. Of this total, approximately RMB816 billion will be
invested into key pollution elimination projects with the aim to
substantially reduce emissions of major pollutants. During the
Twelfth Five-Year Plan period, revisions of 600 EP standards are
expected to be completed, thereby creating a better national
EP standard system. Moreover, the Ministry of Environmental
Protection announced the imposition of special limits on
emissions in February 2013, mainly targeting new projects in six
heavily-polluting industries including thermal power generation,
iron and steel, petrochemical, cement, non-ferrous metal and
chemical industries as well as coal-fired furnace projects.

Because water treatment planning has been launched for a long
time and the industry is more developed, the price competition
is more fierce. Therefore, the Group will be more prudent in
undertaking projects in the future. On the other hand, the Group
is putting greater effort into developing the flue gas treatment
business capitalizing on its proprietary technology and the
advantage of one-stop production. The Group is also providing
desulfurisation services targeting the non-ferrous metal and iron
and steel industries among the above-mentioned six heavily
polluting industries. Following the successful collaboration
with Jinlong Copper Co, Ltd., the Group is discussing similar
cooperation with several enterprises. The Group expects to
finalise landmark projects within the coming one to two years
so as to significantly increase the revenue contribution from the
flue gas treatment business.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERES

Currently, the Group has 52 uncompleted water and flue
gas treatment contracts with a total value of approximately
RMB478.9 million on hand. Looking ahead, the Group intends
to expand its EP engineering business including large-scale
industrial waste water and flue gas treatment, construction and
operations projects, so as to expand its income stream and
generate a stable cashflow.

In summary, the Group will expand steadily in two key areas
of the EP industry, namely flue gas treatment and waste water
treatment, and the eco-friendly construction materials business.
The Group will leverage its proprietary technology for ongoing
transformation of its business and capture the opportunities
made available by the improving EP system in the country.
This will be done in a bid to achieve better results to reward
its shareholders and staff and strive to become the leading
enterprise in the EP industry in the PRC. The management of
the Group will unite together to collectively pursue innovation
and development while working to ensure that the operations
as well as its products comply with relevant standards. All these
arrangements are expected to open a new chapter of growth
for the Group in the future.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). Capital will be
reserved for the development of the Group’s different business
operations, in particular, to capture the enormous potential of
the market for WWCB, the eco-friendly construction material.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 4 June 2013 to Thursday, 6 June 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting, all transfers of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on
Monday, 3 June 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff for their tireless
dedication to the Group during the year. | would also wish to
extend my appreciation to all the shareholders as they have
supported the Group to steadily grow its current business
and expand into the new eco-friendly construction materials
business. My thanks further go to our shareholders, investors,
clients, suppliers and business partners for their constant
support.

By Order of the Board

Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited
Jiang Quanlong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

As an integrated environmental protection services and eco-
friendly construction materials provider in the PRC, the
Group mainly designs and manufactures water and flue gas
treatment products and equipment. The Group also sells pipes,
undertakes EP construction engineering projects and provides
EP-related professional services. To further develop EP-related
businesses with high growth potential to broaden its income
stream, the Group has actively expanded the production scale
of WWCB in accordance with its strategy while still maintaining
its focus on the sales of pipes, flue gas and water treatment
products and equipment in order to generate stable income.

Sales of EP Products and Equipment

During the year under review, sales of EP products and
equipment recorded a turnover of approximately RMB402.9
million, accounting for around 98.1% of the Group’s total
turnover.

Sales of Water Treatment Products and Equipment

The water treatment systems produced by the Group are mainly
used to process industrial and urban wastewater. During the
year under review, the water treatment business generated
a turnover of approximately RMB317.2 million, accounting
for approximately 77.2% of the Group’s turnover. Although
favorable PRC government policies accelerated the demand
for water treatment system, competition within the industry
was fierce. As a result, enterprises reduced their prices in
order to compete, which led to a significant decrease in gross
profit margin. During the year, the Group completed 43 water
treatment related sales contracts. The Group intends to secure
more water treatment projects with greater profits to maintain a
steady growth of the business.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEEFNWED

Sales of Flue Gas Treatment Products and Equipment

The Group mainly provides flue gas desulphurisation (“FGD”)
and flue gas dentrification services to clients in non-ferrous
metals, iron and steel, power generation, cement and glass
industries. Equipped with proprietary technology, the Group
turned its focus from traditional power generation clients
to those in the non-ferrous metals and the iron and steel
industries. During the year under review, the Group completed
9 projects related to sales of flue gas treatment equipment,
contributing a turnover of approximately RMB85.7 million,
representing approximately 20.9% of the Group’s turnover.

Sales of Pipes

The Group also produces fibreglass-reinforced plastic pipes
with diameters of up to 2,000 mm at its Yixing workshop. The
estimated total annual production capacity is approximately
172,680 metres. However, during the year, the Group relocated
the workshop in a new production base in order to streamline
management of all of its production lines. Therefore, the
production of pipes was temporarily suspended during the year.

EP Construction Engineering Projects

Leveraging on its extensive industry expertise, professional
research and development capabilities and technologies, the
Group has been providing one-stop EP solutions to many
clients. During the year, this segment recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB6.1 million, accounting for about 1.5% of
the Group’s total turnover. Most of the projects in this segment
spanned over different financial periods and are booked to the
accounts according to stage of completion.

Provision of EP Related Professional Services

The Group, through its subsidiary namely Shanghai
Environmental Engineering Design & Research Institute Limited
(“SEEDRI”), provides EP-related professional services to clients.
With Grade A engineering design certificates, SEEDRI is
qualified to undertake engineering design for all environmental
projects. During the year, the segment recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB1.6 million, accounting for approximately
0.4% of the Group’s total turnover.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEEFNWED

Sales of EP Construction Materials

The introduction of EP wallboard production lines from the
Netherlands enabled the Group to expand into the eco-
friendly construction materials business. During the year, most
of the products were exported to Korea, and generated a
turnover of approximately RMB200,000. The Group cooperated
closely with a number of construction and design institutes,
and established demonstration projects in Shanghai, Yixing,
Jingmen and Xiamen, thereby raising the market’s attention to
this eco-friendly construction material. This segment started to
generate income for the Group in the fourth quarter of 2012. As
the business was still at the developmental stage, the revenue
generated was relatively low when compared to the expenses
incurred for developing the business during the year. However,
the Board believes that continuing development of such new
business would eventually be rewarding and beneficial to the
Group as the revenue is expected to be growing in future.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the total assets of the Group
amounted to RMB1,604.2 million, an increase of RMB88.3
million as compared with RMB1,515.9 million in 2011. Increase
in total assets was mainly due to the implementation of the
new WWCB production facilities and increase of inventories.
The Group’s total liabilities as at 31 December 2012 amounted
to RMB418.9 million, an increase of RMB117.4 million as
compared with RMB301.5 million in 2011. The main reason
for the increase in total liabilities was the increase in trade and
other payables and deposits received in advance, as well as
new short-term bank loans. The Group’s total equity as at 31
December 2012 was RMB1,185.3 million (2011: RMB1,214.5
million). The Group had an unpaid bank borrowings of totalling
RMB14.0 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil) and the
equity ratio calculated by dividing interest-bearing loans and
other borrowings by total equity was 1.2% (2011: Nil). The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB564.1
million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB606.8 million).
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

Business transactions and liabilities of the Group are largely
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollars. The Group
adopts a conservative financial policy and the majority of its
bank deposits are in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31
December 2012, the Group did not have any foreign currency
bank liability, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.
Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures as
and when appropriate. As at 31 December 2012, the Group did
not have any derivative for hedging against both the interest
rate and foreign exchange risks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a capital expenditure
commitment in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and injection of the share capital of a subsidiary
totalling RMB86.2 million (2011: RMB149.6 million). The Group
provides product maintenance service to customers of FGD
construction projects and certain EP products for a period
ranging from 6 months to 2 years after a project is completed
or a product is delivered. At the same time, the Group enjoys
warranties for the work and equipment from its sub-contractors
and suppliers. The Directors of the Company believe that the
amount of crystallised warranty liabilities, if any, in excess of the
amount covered by the warranties given by sub-contractors and
suppliers, would not have any material adverse effect on the
overall financial position or operating results of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 250
employees. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive
levels and are reviewed annually, with close reference to the
relevant labour market and economic situations. Remuneration
of the Directors is determined based on a variety of factors such
as market conditions and the specific responsibilities shouldered
by the individual director. Apart from the basic remuneration
and statutory benefits required by law, the Group also provides
discretionary bonuses based on its results and the performance
of the individual employee. The Group also has an employee
share option scheme in operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Board has committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework
for the Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability and to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and to enhance its
transparency and accountability.

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2012, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Company’s
Securities Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Company’s Securities Dealing Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company’s Securities Dealing Code on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions also
applies to all employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Company’s Securities
Dealing Code by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Chairman and member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Jiang Lei, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Fan Yajun

Mr. Gan Yi

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Wing Lee, chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and member of
the Audit Committee
Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny, chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee
Professor Wang Guozhen, member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee

The biographical information of the directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages
25 to 29 of the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2012. The relationships between the members of the Board are
also disclosed therein.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Jiang Quanlong and Mr. Jiang Lei respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and
daily management and operations generally. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors and Directors’
Re-election

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive Directors shall be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election whereas code provision A.4.2 states that
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company is appointed under a letter of appointment which
is terminable by either party with 3 months’ notice in writing
served on the other side. All directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and
any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary and senior management. The directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate.
Relevant reading materials including directors’ manual/legal
and regulatory update/seminar handouts have been provided
to the directors for the reference and studying. Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses. During the year ended 31 December,
2012, the Company has arranged training for Directors in
the form of seminar and/or provision of training materials.
All Directors have provided a record of their training to the
Company Secretary. A summary of the training record of the
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 is as
follows:

Name of Directors

EENE

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. Jiang Quanlong BRELE

Mr. Jiang Lei Ba@iE

Mr. Fan Yajun SBaRE ke

Mr. Gan Yi HREE
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUINTESE -
Mr. Lai Wing Lee R FSEE

Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny RRFT S E
Professor Wang Guozhen TR
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors and the list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out on
page 16 of this Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
internal control procedures and risk management system, audit
plan and relationship with external auditor, and arrangements
to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012 and significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems, scope of work and appointment
of external auditor and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without
the presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure
for all directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met twice to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors and senior management and other
related matters.
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. External
recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Company’s
Securities Dealing Code and the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out in the
table below:

EFRERERALKES

REEREE-_ET——F+_A=+—H
HEERTHEZSRESZEeZEZMN
BRARNBBRRASHHFLESESHHNMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY / ERAH

Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General

Name of Directors Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting

EERA E¥® REZRe® FHTRe® FUERE RRAEXE

Jiang Quanlong BrE 1 11 2/2 N/A 1/1
TR

Jiang Lei k& 6/7 N/A N/A N/A 11
TR TaR TR

Fan Yajun BEE 7 N/A N/A N/A 0N
TER TEm TR

Gan Yi "% 7 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
TER TEm TER

Lai Wing Lee BKH 7 1 2/2 2/2 0N

Leung Shu Sun, Sunny PR 7 11 2/2 2/2 11

Wang Guozhen I8y 7 N 2/2 212 01

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 42 to
43.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of
the Company, CCIF CPA Limited, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2012 is
set out below:
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Fees Paid/
Service Category Payable
REER g2t EfEA
HK$
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Audit Services ZE AR 1,200,000.00
Non-audit Services FERZEAR 75
- Review of accounts for the period ended - REEHEE-_ZT——F
30 June 2012 NAZTHIEHEZERS 500,000.00
— Review results announcement - EBREERE 50,000.00
1,750,000.00
INTERNAL CONTROLS A ER IR

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary
complied with the professional training requirement as set out in
the Listing Rule 3.29 during the year ended 31 December 2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Directors or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
Extraordinary General Meeting to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
regarding procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set
out above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

For proposal of a person for election as director, pursuant
to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven (7) clear
days before the date of the general meeting and the period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and shall be at least seven (7) clear
days in length.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Email: info@paep.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address apart from the registered office of the Company, and
provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The
Chairman of the Board, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their
delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

HEiEREEREENRE

ARARIRA - BRRAYBBERERE
ERELEREE TRASEEBRRR
KRMSEWEE - ARARIREFHE
BROFBEER  LEZBEBRRAFA
EREMKRRAE - EFEEEF  BUF
HWTEFURBEFZBGER (AHF
MARR) BEEBRREAFAE  BERE
T 3 % 2 AR ER B

REEFER  ARAWEHHAGER
ABBIMEHAE(MERT » AN RRAEA =240
B B BT AR AR B 7S 2 R A48 3tk I Bk 22 P 48 ik AT
HER -



Annual Report 2012 o =

Directors and Senior Management

EEREREER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Quanlong, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Board
and an Executive Director of the Company. He was appointed
as Director of the Company in August 2006. He is also a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He has over 15 years of experience in China’s EP
industry. He is responsible for formulating strategies guiding the
Group’s overall development and strengthening the competitive
position of the Group in the PRC’s EP market. In addition, he
is the chairman and executive director of China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Jiang is the father of Mr.
Jiang Lei, an Executive Director, and father of Jiang Xin, both
being controlling shareholders of Praise Fortune Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the sole
director of Praise Fortune Limited.

Mr. Jiang Lei, aged 30, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group and an Executive Director of the Company. He was
appointed as Director of the Company in March 2007. He
joined the Group in March 2007 and is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in Finance from Cass Business School, London, the
United Kingdom. Mr. Jiang is the son of Mr. Jiang Quanlong, an
Executive Director and controlling shareholder, and a controlling
shareholder of Praise Fortune Limited, controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Fan Yajun, aged 45, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He was appointed as Director of the Company
in March 2007. He has more than 20 years of experience
in business management. He joined the Group in July 2002
and has been responsible for the overall administration and
business management. He completed a Master of Business
Administration course at Southeast University in July 2004. For
the period between August 1999 and August 2005, he was
an executive director of China Rare Earth Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Gan Yi, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He was appointed as Director of the Company in March 2007.
He has over 25 years of experience in EP engineering design.
He was appointed as an officer of Shanghai Environmental
Engineering Design & Research Institute Limited (“SEEDRI”) in
1995 and has served as a director of SEEDRI since 2002. He
was also the chairman and general manager of SEEDRI from
2003 until April 2006, and was appointed the vice general
manager of SEEDRI in April 2006. He is responsible for the daily
operation and market development of SEEDRI. He completed
a security engineering course at Tongji University in December
1988.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Wing Lee, aged 73, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
December 2007. He is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and also a
member of the Audit Committee. He has been the managing
director of Shenzhen Beishen Environmental Packaging
Development Co., Limited, which is mainly engaged in the sales
and manufacture of EP packaging products, since August 2005.
He graduated from the South China Institute of Technology (now
known as South China University of Technology) in 1965. He
has over 30 years of experience in enterprise management.
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Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny, aged 50, has been appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since December 2007. He is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. He has over 20 years’
working experience in, among others, accounting, treasury
management, budgeting and corporate finance. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a professional
diploma in Accountancy and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of South Australia.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of Certified
General Accountants’ Association of Canada. From 2005 to
2007, he served as the financial controller, qualified accountant
and company secretary of Xiwang Sugar Holdings Company
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. From 2001 to date, he was a director of
a company providing accounting, tax and corporate finance
services. From 1999 to 2001, he held key financial position in
a listed company in Hong Kong. From 1998 to 1999, he was
a finance director of a company principally engaged in the
provision of network infrastructure solutions. From 1993 to
1998, he was the financial controller of a company principally
engaged in property investment, trading and securities. From
1987 to 1990, he worked in international accounting firms
handling audit, tax and accounting matters. Mr. Leung has been
an independent non-executive director of Xiwang Special Steel
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since February 2012.

Professor Wang Guozhen, aged 77, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
December 2007. He is a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He was
from 1994 to 2005, a member of the Rare Earth Expert Group
of China State Planning and Development Commission, and
the team leader of the Industry Division. He graduated from
the Department of Chemical Engineering of Tianjin University
with a major in physical chemistry of metals. He is a member of
the expert group and an adviser of the Environment Protection
Specialist Commission. He has been an independent director
of the State-owned Gansu Rare Earth Group Co., Ltd. since
2005. On 1 August 2012, Professor Wang was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. On 1 December 2012, he was
also appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Lianyungang Ligang Rare Earth Industrial Co., Ltd.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent, aged 39, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. He joined the
Group in March 2007 and is responsible for the corporate
finance function of the Group, and oversees matter related
to financial administration, and the compliance and reporting
obligations of the Group. Mr. Wan has more than 15 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wan has worked for a company
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, as its financial
controller from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Wan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wan holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. Fu Kun, aged 46, has over 20 years of experience in
project management of engineering design. He served as a vice
general manager of SEEDRI since April 2006. Before joining
the Group, he was the vice general manager of Shanghai
Gongcheng. He is responsible for project management of
environmental protection engineering design. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Asia International Open
University, Macau.

Mr. Huang Wei, aged 29, is the vice general manager of
Wuxi Pan-Asia. He has about 9 years of experience in EP
technology. He joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible for
wood wool cement board division. Before joining the Group, he
was a technical manager of Jiangsu Yuansheng Environmental
Protection Equipment Co, Limited. He graduated from Xuzhou
Normal University, majoring in computer numerical control
machining technology.

Mr. Ji Hongwei, aged 42, is the vice general manager of
Wuxi Pan-Asia. He has about 10 years of experience in sales
and project management. He joined the Group in 2003 and
is responsible for sales and marketing of wood wool cement
board. Before joining the Group, he was a sales manager of
Yixing Xingda Catalyst Factory. He graduated from Dapu Middle
School in Yixing City.

Mr. Wu Xijun, aged 39, is the head of the finance department
of Wuxi Pan-Asia. He has about 10 years of experience in
financial management. He joined the Group in February 2011.
Before joining the Group, he was a finance manager of Yixing
Xinwei Leeshing Refractory Materials Company Limited. He
graduated from The Open University of China, majoring in
accountancy.
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Mr. Shen Mingming, aged 57, is the manager of the
administration and human resource department of Wuxi
Pan-Asia. He joined the Group in 2010 and is responsible
for the daily management of the Group’s human resource,
administration and logistics services. Before joining the Group,
he worked as deputy general director in Investment Invitation
Bureau of Yixing, the PRC. He graduated from Jiangsu Radio
and TV University majoring in industrial economy management.

Ms. Sun Ying, aged 31, is the manager of the business
development department of Wuxi Pan-Asia. She joined the
Group in 2003 and is responsible for the business development
and business management. She graduated from Yangzhou
University majoring in economy management.

Mr. Tang Weiqing, aged 49, the vice general manager of
SEEDRI. He has over 20 years of experience in EP engineering
design. He joined SEEDRI in 2003 and is responsible for the
overall project engineering design of SEEDRI. He graduated
from Shanghai University of Technology with a major in analytical
chemistry.
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Report of the Directors
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The Board is pleased to submit their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has
its principal place of business in the PRC at No. 1 Chuanshan
Road, Dingshu Town, Yixing City, Jiangsu Province, PRC
214222 and its principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of pipes, water
treatment and flue gas treatment products and equipment, as
well as undertaking of EP construction engineering projects,
provision of EP related professional services and manufacture of
EP construction materials.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and suppliers
of the Group during the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BREP

Five largest customers in aggregate hREFEET
The largest supplier BAHER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR R RET

None of the Directors, their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2012 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 44
to 48.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Losses attributable to equity holders of the Company, before
dividends, of RMB30,157,000 (2011: profits of RMB9,520,000)
have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves
are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2012, the distributable reserve of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB759,334,000 (2011:
RMB772,702,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the financial year are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Quanlong (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fan Yajun

Mr. Gan Yi
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Wing Lee

Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny

Professor Wang Guozhen

Mr. Jiang Quanlong retires from the office as executive Director
and Mr. Lai Wing Lee and Mr. Leung Shu Sun, Sunny retire
from the offices as independent non-executive Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with article
108(A) of the articles of association and all retiring directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the information disclosed in “Related Party
Transactions” in note 32 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party,
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions RZZE—ZF+-A=+—H XRAAEEK
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the SETHRABRAATREEEEZE (EER
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its BAHLEEGRD ([FH5REIE GO £XVED)
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the 25 - HEARNSESFREARER AR
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”) as recorded in the AIRIRTE 75 R BB G0 235216k F 2 & &
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 AR BIZEFRIEMG AR A T R 2 =

of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

AR ¢

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company (@) REITRGREBERGZER

Approximate

percentage
Equity of issued
derivatives share capital
Number of (share option) EHERT
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held BFE{FEIR BFz
EEER BanE BERNSBE (FERR4E) Eol=R2 44
(Note 1)  (Notes 1 and 4)
(Btat1) (Btet1k4)
Jiang Quanlong Corporate interest 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
BRiE EE R (Note 2)
(Hiaz2)
Beneficial interest 400,000 (L) 0.05%
BEmiEem
Jiang Lei Corporate interest 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
B EERE (Note 3)
(Kt523)
Beneficial interest 400,000 (L) 0.05%
BEatEsn
Fan Yajun Beneficial interest 5,000,000 (L) 0.63%
BEHE BEmiEsm
Gan Yi Beneficial interest 2,000,000 (L) 0.25%
B EanEm
Lai Wing Lee Beneficial interest 1,000,000 (L) 0.13%
KA # 26 o
Leung Shu Sun, Sunny Beneficial interest 1,000,000 (L) 0.13%
R BEmigm
Wang Guozhen Beneficial interest 1,000,000 (L) 0.13%

TEE

Bt
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(b)

Interests in shares of the associated corporation of the
Company

(b) RARRBELEERG 2 ERE

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
share capital

of the
associated
Name of Number of corporation
associated shares {GEBER
Name of Director Nature of interest corporation interested BRTEREZ
EEnR BaMHE HEEEEE SHRERHBAE B¥Hast
(Note 1)
(HiaE1)
Jiang Lei Beneficial interest Praise Fortune 300 (L) 49.92%
B BExEn Limited
Notes: Htat -

1.

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in the shares/
underlying shares.

These 600,000,000 shares were registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Praise Fortune Limited. Mr. Jiang Quanlong
is the sole director of Praise Fortune Limited and he was deemed
to be interested in all the shares in which Praise Fortune Limited
was interested by virtue of the SFO.

These 600,000,000 shares were registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Praise Fortune Limited. The total number of
issued shares in Praise Fortune Limited as at 31 December 2012
was 601 shares of US$1 each. These 601 shares were owned as
to 300 shares being 49.9% by Mr. Jiang Lei, 300 shares being
49.9% by Mr. Jiang Xin and 1 share being 0.2% by Ms. Qian
Yuanying. Under the SFO, Mr. Jiang Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin were
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Praise Fortune
Limited.

These interests represent the interests in underlying shares
in respect of share options granted by the Company to these
directors as beneficial owners, the details of which are set out in
the Share Option Scheme section stated below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, so far as
was known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

1. FEILREEFRRG,EERGZ
7R -

2. #%%600,000,000/% 8% 15 LAPraise Fortune
LimitedZ? & SR THEERHES -
¥ RBESL 4 JhPraise Fortune LimitedZ
M—FE BREZFSFRBEEMESG
/A APraise Fortune LimitedPTER &
AR HEas o

3. #%%5600,000,000% %15 APraise Fortune
Limitedz Z &SR WHEE=ESR -
Praise Fortune Limited® —Z— %+
ZA=t+—HZBEBITRD L A0
BREREEIZETZRG - % %601K%
A& 15 Th B8 ¥ % 55 A& ¥ B 3008% AR 15 (B
49.9%) * M ¥ & % & % 53000% B
(B149.9%) kBETEZTHEGIRK
7 (BN0.2%) - IBIBEFEH R BAE KA -
BREERES L EWR A BPrase
Fortune Limited T A < I #Ew ©

4. ZERDEAATMEHEE (FRER
FAAN) XSRS &m0 i8R Rt
& ARFBERN T X B8 -

B @EN B2 E——F+-A=1+—
A BARRIMESESESTHRASNM
MEEELERTHAER AR R SREMER
BOEE (FERBH RBAEGEOIEXVE) 21F
IR (5 - BRI sk EFH A T oA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME RERRiEETE)

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share ARE R — IR 8 ([ RS
Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in Note 29 to the gl]) - FIRENM B mAN T2 - RIBE
financial statements. Details of the share options granted under ~ RR#EzTEIR L 2 EREZ FBERNEERSE

the Share Option Scheme and their movements during the year TE——F+ - A=+—BILEEZEH
ended 31 December 2012 were as follows: HIWT -
Number of Share Options
{3301
Exercised/
Cancelled/ Balance
Balance Lapsed as at
as at during the  31/12/2012
1/1/2012 Granted year 3
Exercise ® during WER ZB-Zf
Date of Price  Vesting Exercise —E-Zf the year BT/ +Z8
Directors Grant per share  Period Period —-A—H RER 53 =+-H
Ez RUAHE SRTEE BEY fTERmM ZRB 253! RE3: P4 -1
HKD
BT
giang Quanlong 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 400,000 - - 400,000
BRae 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
tliang Lei 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 400,000 - - 400,000
B&E 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
Fan Yajun 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
BEE 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83  11/6/2012 to 11/6/2013 to - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Gan Yi 14/5/2008 2,81 14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
R 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83  11/6/2012 to 11/6/2013 to - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Lai\Wing Lee 14/5/2008 2,81 14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 500,000 - - 500,000
BAF 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83  11/6/2012 to 11/6/2013 to - 500,000 - 500,000
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Leung Shu Sun, Sunny 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 500,000 - - 500,000
At 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83  11/6/2012 to 11/6/2013 to - 500,000 - 500,000
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
Wang Guozhen 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 500,000 - - 500,000
IRy 13/5/2009 13/5/2018
11/6/2012 0.83  11/6/2012 to 11/6/2013 to - 500,000 - 500,000
10/6/2013 10/6/2022
5,800,000 5,000,000 - 10,800,000
Continuous contract 14/5/2008 2.81  14/5/2008 to 14/5/2009 to 11,000,000 - 1,000,000 10,000,000
employees 13/5/2009 13/5/2018 (Note 2)
RHEHER (Hi#2)
11/6/2012 0.83  11/6/2012 to 11/6/2013 to - 30,000,000 - 30,000,000

10/6/2013 10/6/2022

11,000,000 30,000,000 1,000,000 40,000,000

(Note 2)

(Hit2)
Total 16,800,000 35,000,000 1,000,000 50,800,000
o H (Note 1) (Note 2)

(Hrit1) (Hiit2)
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Notes: Bt
1. On 11 June 2012, 39,000,000 share options were granted to 1. RZZ——FXA+—H ARQFARE
the grantees by the Company under its Share Option Scheme LS IR i 51 &) ) & 3% A 3 539,000,000
subject to acceptance, and a total of 35,000,000 share options mEBRE(MMEEEZR kaHf
were accepted by the grantees. The closing price of the shares 35,000,00017 f f% 1 B I A B4 o
immediately before 11 June 2012 was HK$0.81. These share T —FXAT-HRZERHK
options will vest on 11 June 2013, and will be exercisable until 10 MEAR0BIBIL s ZEERERNR T
June 2022. The exercise price is HK$0.83 per share. =FXNA+—HEB WAIRZT=
ZENATRZANTE Tﬂ?ﬁf‘?%tl]ﬁ
0.83 7T ©
2. 1,000,000 share options lapsed due to resignation of senior 2. REEZZT——F+ZA=+—HLHF
management during the year ended 31 December 2012, £ 1,000,000 R ERNRREEAR
BT 25 267 -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS Eiﬂﬁiﬁ“gﬁk—lﬂﬁﬁ&*ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND RzEEREE
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
So far as was known to the Directors and chief executive of RZT—=—F+-A=+—8B BARAES

MEBITTBRABMM  THAL (ARAES
FZBITHABRIN) RARF 2N RIEH
et ERRIEE S R E K 533614 F E
ZBRMAZ ERIOARMT

the Company, as at 31 December 2012, the following persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

RADQ BB REBERG 2 Ex

Interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Approximate

Equity percentage of

derivatives issued share

Number of (share option) capital

Name Nature of interest shares held BEHEIR HERTERE

&1 Eang FrisRk R & A (REREHE) Z@Hhaskt

(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Hratt) (izt1)

Praise Fortune Limited Beneficial interest 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
Praise Fortune Limited EankEs

Mr. Jiang Xin (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%

BEEE (Hi2) SRt VNEE oy

Ms. Qian Yuanying (Note 3) Interest of spouse 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
Bt (f:#3) [ Ea

Interest of spouse 400,000 (L) 0.05%
FofdiE s

Ms.ﬂ Li Jingru (Note 4) Interest of spouse 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
FEmt (fiita) LB

Ms. Chai Yongping (Note 5) Interest of spouse 600,000,000 (L) 75.00%
st L (A7) g

Interest of spouse 400,000 (L) 0.05%

At
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Notes:

1. The Letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares/
underlying shares.

2. These Shares were registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Praise Fortune Limited. The total number of issued
shares in Praise Fortune Limited as at 31 December 2012 was
601 shares of US$1 each. These 601 shares were owned as to
300 shares being 49.9% by Mr. Jiang Lei, an executive Director,
300 shares being 49.9% by Mr. Jiang Xin and 1 share being 0.2%
by Ms. Qian Yuanying. The sole director of Praise Fortune Limited
is Mr. Jiang Quanlong, an executive Director. Under the SFO, Mr.
Jiang Lei, Mr. Jiang Xin and Mr. Jiang Quanlong were deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Praise Fortune Limited.

3. Ms. Qian Yuanying is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Quanlong and was
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares and underlying
shares in which Mr. Jiang Quanlong was deemed to be interested.

4. Ms. Li Jingru is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Xin and was therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Jiang Xin
was deemed to be interested.

5. Ms. Chai Yongping is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Lei and was
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares and underlying
shares in which Mr. Jiang Lei was deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the
Company has not been notified by any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed share during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

1. FEILIEEEALRRG HEERG
ZHRE -

2. ZZE /15 LAPraise Fortune LimitedZ %
EBLIWHEEZ#ES © Praise Fortune
LimtedR =ZE—=—F+=-RA=+—HZ
BEEITIRMN AR A0 REREEIET
Z B o 3Z601RE RN Ty iz e A (B
TE %) HEAS00MA Y (B149.9%) + B
B E L EVEAI00R AR 17 (B149.9%) &
R TRZTHEEIREKNL (B10.2%) -
Praise Fortune Limited” M—&E %A%
TEZRRERE - REEFRPEK
Bl Bk BEAEREBERELSE
%18 B Praise Fortune Limitedfria
2RO AR -

3. BURLLIDBREELEZES Hit
BRRARBRELERERFEE L2
Pt B AR RERS £ o 46 s -

4 EBWELDREREZER Bk
BAREEELREAEE L2 BRI
b S o

5. BOKHAETNIEEALEZEB B
BRANBEEERERER 22N
R ABBAR D R B A A

BEREEN  BE-R-—F+-A=+—
A ARATBTAEEEMAL KATEE
LEHTRABBIN) RAR TR LIABR
e AR AR o

REROFLAFZAFZET
B% {7

REZEZ_FE——F+-_A=+—HLFE K
NG AN 8= =1 = EIFN/NCT S )
TR o

RAZARBRE
BEBELFHEH  AAATARMELA

BRBESMAM  ARF—E#T EHRARA
THREZARFERE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 8, 19, 23, 24 and 32 to the financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at
any time during the financial year.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

Non-Competition Undertaking

Under the restrictive covenants of a share purchase agreement
dated 1 December 2007 executed among (i) YY Holdings as
vendor, (i) Praise Fortune Limited, Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Ms.
Qian Yuanying, Mr. Jiang Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin as covenantors,
and (iii) the Company as the purchaser, each of Praise Fortune
Limited, Ms. Qian Yuanying, Mr. Jiang Quanlong, Mr. Jiang
Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin (collectively the “Covenantors”) has
undertaken that he/she/it will not and shall procure his/her/its
Associates will not:

(@) at any time disclose to any person, or himself/herself/
itself use for any purpose, and shall use his/her/its best
endeavours to prevent the publication or disclosure of, any
information concerning the business, accounts or finances
of any Group company, or any of its clients’, suppliers’
or customers’ transactions or affairs, which may, or may
have, come to his/her/its knowledge;

(b) at any time during which the Company is listed on
the Stock Exchange and for so long as each of the
Covenantors and their respective associates collectively
hold, whether individually or taken together, 30% or more
of the issued Shares or is regarded as the controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company under the Listing Rules
or for a period of two years from the date of the Listing,
whichever is the longest period of time:

(i)  directly or indirectly solicit, interfere with, employ or
endeavour to entice away from any Group company
with a view to competing with the Group any
person who, to his/her/its knowledge, is now, or
has during the 12 months preceding the date of the
share purchase agreement been, a client, customer,
supplier or employee of, or has been in the habit of
dealing with, any Group company;

EFERSHCER

B B 75 R R M RES - 19~ 23~ 24 KR 32FT &
N RATR] - HEMERAR - MEBARKAE
RWBARBMESETUARNGEENETE
BEA#E  ARUBEFEFEAMBFESF
REMEENABRIZEREL -

EFERBERBCED

FHF R

B & A() YY Holdings (B %) * (i) Praise
Fortune Limited * $RBEE A « En+ -
BRmIERESLE GR@A) Hii)ARAR (B
F)R-ZZETLE+ - Al EBRGZ
2 BRI 1% {6 3% - Praise Fortune Limited »
TLELZL - BRELE BZAERESAE
(A [FFEAD HRlE « 5T g BigE
FEBEA LIS

(@ MNEMBREATAMALTEELEAAR
E B R B AR AR 8 R AL H
EARBZED BREXHBHZEH
FEEF HERABTPZRFIHE
% WRKIEEMEN LZFENISH
EBRARMSERE -

(o) MARBERERZPAT EHEEA - RRE
EmRAlsmE LTz ARG REREA
NERERE) EAKRE AXFRFHE
(B EERRELRRE) 30%3 A L
BERTEROIWER/ARBERBRRZ
BABEARBEESEBBEAL

() EEIEEFE - TE ERAZE
I 375 {5t 50 L P RN R By sl 0 R AR 1 2
RIS AR+ — {8 A B A A& E
FARBZEP - BT - fERXK
REFEFEAEBEIRMKE QT
BTS2 ERALRERAEEE
A AR ABRAE E GRS
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(i) at any time use the name or trading style of any
Group company, or any trademarks or logos or
device similar in appearance to any trademarks, in
the PRC, Hong Kong or any other part of the world,
or represent himself as carrying on or continuing
or being connected with any Group company or its
business for any purposes whatsoever; and/or

(i)  directly or indirectly carry on or be engaged or
concerned or interested in the businesses of (i)
the production of water treatment and flue gas
treatment and solid waste treatment equipment and
components and pipes; (ii) the sale and installation
of water treatment and flue gas treatment and solid
waste treatment equipment and pipes; and (i) the
contracting of water treatment and flue gas treatment
and solid waste treatment projects, being the current
principal businesses of the Group.

Each of the Covenantors has confirmed that he/she/it is not
currently engaged in any business, which directly or indirectly
competes or may compete with the Group’s business.

Each of the Covenantors has undertaken in favour of the
Company under the share purchase agreement to procure the
provision to the Company of all information necessary for the
enforcement of the above undertaking. Each of the Covenantors
further undertakes in favour of the Company to make a
statement in the annual report of the Company confirming
compliance by it and its affiliates with the terms of the non-
competition undertaking in the share purchase agreement.
The Company will disclose in its annual reports on how the
undertakings in the share purchase agreement are complied
with and enforced in accordance with the principles of making
voluntary disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report as
defined in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Benxi Fanya Environmental Heat & Power Co., Ltd. (“Benxi
Fanya”) is owned as to 80% by Asia Global Tech Group Limited
(“AGT (HK)"), and as to 20% by an Independent Third Party. AGT
(HK) is beneficially owned as to 60%, 20% and 20% by Ms. Qian
Yuanying (the spouse of Mr. Jiang Quanlong), Mr. Jiang Lei and
Mr. Jiang Xin (both of whom are sons of Mr. Jiang Quanlong)
respectively. The permitted business scope on the business
licence of Benxi Fanya includes, among others, research and
consultation of environmental protection technology, and design
of EP engineering. As at the date of this annual report, Benxi
Fanya was principally engaged in generating electricity and
heat, and was not engaged or interested in any businesses

(i) PMEMESRE - EPE - FEREM
BB R iR B AR EEA A
A2 ARG S R A S L F A
IR Z MBI Z EARE - BiR
HEZE  HTwRERMBORKER
FHRFBENFELREBEAR
RREEBERZES  R%

(i) EEHEEFAR - KERPRAE
EREIEXEBINETHEAE
g Bl (VEEKEE R EREE
LEREEYRERBE N THERE
B (i) KER IR N B SRR IR K [E] B8 R
EMREREREMHERLE
R i) B2 7K R 3R R B R R BB K (B
BEEYRETRE (AAEERAN
ZEBEER)

FARAD DR - RERFITELFEARE
BEBEZARBEBREF L AEBREFZ
ESCES N

BAGEANDCRBBEBBEELARRABE
mAZAEGE - MR AR R B AT LA
IR ZEEER - FAEANE-TEHUAE
RAIBFIEAZAEGE  BRARRFERPIED
BE - ERENEBE AR SE T BRI
P FAGE 2GR > AR BIFRE LR R
B4R ECEE R ME 2 ARBERA - ®
A S o B R B AR 1 P ARG 2 B ST AR S
TR ©

REZDRRBEARAA ([FARZE]
fiAsia Global Tech Group Limited ([AGT
(HK)]) #E B80% KB — B E=FHA
20% ° AGT (HK)» Rl@ i+ (BREE
E2BRB) BREEREBESELE (HRERE
LHEZT) HEH60%  20%K%20% ° ARz T
ZEXERRAIFTAIKEHEIRE (KR8
IRIR BT T B AE 3 IR R TR BRET - MASF
WMEH NEZREENESHIRAEEE -
Mt EERNEERGEEXBENFEFE 2
EREBINEREEEZ - IHRATRES
AR (DI#KT)) BAARRERITESH
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which compete with the current principal businesses of the
Group. Jiangsu Tianyuan Technologies Limited (“Jiangsu
Tianyuan”) is owned by the associates of Mr. Fang Guohong,
a former executive Director of the Company who resigned
on 25 March 2009. The permitted business scope on the
business licence of Jiangsu Tianyuan includes, among others,
research and development of denitrification EP equipment and
technology, manufacture of FGD EP equipment, desulphurization
absorption tower and flue glass flake anticorrosive material
and denitrification EP equipment. As at the date of this
annual report, Jiangsu Tianyuan was principally engaged in
the business of producing thermal insulation components,
and was not engaged or interested in any businesses which
compete with the current principal businesses of the Group.
The permitted scope of business of each of Benxi Fanya and
Jiangsu Tianyuan is relatively wide, but it is not unusual for a
corporate entity to provide for a broader scope of business in its
corporate documents to allow for flexibility. At present, neither
Benxi Fanya nor Jiangsu Tianyuan has any plan to vary their
respective business licences to exclude or alter the permitted
activities as set out therein.

Mr. Jiang Quanlong is also the chairman and one of the
executive directors of China Rare Earth Holdings Limited
(“CRE"), a company whose securities are listed on the Main
Board. CRE and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of rare earth products and refractory
products. As the Group’s principal business is to provide
integrated EP solutions in areas such as water and flue gas
treatments, the current principal businesses of the Group and
those of CRE and its subsidiaries do not compete with each
other.

Under the restrictive covenants of several service agreements
dated 1 December 2007 between the Company and each of the
executive Directors, the executive Directors gave undertakings
similar to the wordings stated in paragraph (b) above of the said
share purchase agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors shall review, at least
on an annual basis, the compliance with the non-competition
undertaking by each of such persons on their existing or future
competing business and the Company shall disclose the result
of such review either through the annual report of the Company,
or by way of announcement to the public.

As the controlling shareholders (namely, Praise Fortune Limited,
Mr. Jiang Lei and Mr. Jiang Xin) and Mr. Jiang Quanlong as sole
director of Praise Fortune Limited have given non-competition
undertakings in favour of the Company and none of them has
interests in other business that compete or are likely to compete
with the business of the Group, the management and operation
of the operating entities are independent from each other. The
Directors are of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of the controlling shareholders.

BURELEZHMBALHES  ITHRATEERAR
PROVFFAI R EMERE (A %) BERERR
B M e i B - BRI ERR AR - BT
Ws ~ BRI S B AR - BURHIRIR R
ZBE - RAFRAMPMIBRATEEREE
ERBGTMH2EY  MUERERRNERR
BEXIEXBBERRFZEMNEBXINERES
R o ARZEETEHRT 2 B K& E
HERE - BERARFELE  —HAREERE
FEREQRXHhRERECEBHE - B
Al AR ZEETHRATY B EEREXE
ZEERR - AEBRRERE PR Z R
ESi

BREAETRTEBLERERAE ([HE
WD (EERORERLET) 2 EFERAITE
E-hEBRLIREMBAREERESERE
EMIEMMMNER BARAEEZEEX
BRARBEKREREES R 2RARRER
FE BHAEERIZI2RGEDERK -
E NI SRS

BREARREGURITEEN _TTLF+ 2
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 148 of
the annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The retirement schemes of the Company and its subsidiaries are
primarily in form of contributions to the Hong Kong mandatory
provident fund and China statutory public welfare fund.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 7 to
the financial statements.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been audited by CCIF CPA Limited
("CCIF"). CCIF will retire as auditor at the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting and will not offer
themselves for re-appointment following the merger of business
with PCP CPA Limited resulting in Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited operating as the merged firm. Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited is a member firm in Hong Kong of Crowe Horwath
International.

As a result of these changes, a resolution for the appointment
of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Jiang Quanlong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF PAN ASIA ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pan
Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
44 to 147, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

®

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED
PRE R EEIEISHPIERAE
9/F Leighton Centre

77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B ET RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013

Ho Chun Shing
Practising Certificate Number P04396

A 2 BT ERBELSAMAE
M2 BABBRTERETT - RFLERER
RAZ BB B ST 1R T HUE A M B R IT R
BIAGE ZENERAMBHREEE T
FEEAZSEREL -

EVBEREETRERFANSEGS MK
BRAMBBALBEEREHZIERER
EoBMZRERFABRTIZEMZH
b BREAEERAMBHRRZEANERR
it (T A EF SRR 512 ) Z AR o
RN ZEF ARG - 2SS B E
RARHEABER TR BRRAEBL
MEBERHE - U AN RBER R EE B&IE
FEBYFEERARAMEREREAR
RERR - ERAETEEFGEMAE
BERZBEN EFmMEzethEzE
Bl YHGEPMBHRRZEEBE2ITRA
R FFE o

AZBENR(E - DZBEN PTG 2 BB
ERREBELEAMEBRIRE -

BER

TIZBANRE « 16 P BMERBIER BN
BHRELENZUNEERAFHER ERQ
AlfE BEEN_ZT——F+-_A=+—
BB E BE£EEEZBALEFE
ZEERBESRE  WIRRES QKM
ZEBERTEELBIRE -

BRESEHMELRERAT
HEEEA
EH —E—=FE=A—-++tH

18] 1% 8%
HEFERFP04396



n Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited ¢ ;2 THIR{REBER LA T

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

TURNOVER
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT

Other revenue

Other net (loss)/income

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Finance costs

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Income tax expenses

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year (after tax and reclassification

adjustments)
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for

the year, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

FOR THE YEAR

(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
- Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 49 to 147 form part of these financial

statements.

Note
fit &

ES ] 4
HERA
E7

Hep A 4
Hh% (B1]R),/ Wz 4
HERDHRX
—RRITHFAX
HEtE R

BiRm (BIR) /#% 5
BRI 6

E£R (BR),/ &

FRRMREHE (BR)
(REREEHIMAR)

MERTBRE
ZIERER

FRRM2EHE (ER)
(Rig)

FhRE (BR)Bhawd

BITALHREE (BR), /&7 :
Z/NCIE 2D
IR

HTALEERE (BR)ha
L

RATHEA
N

sk (BR) 2 12
- EAREE

2012 2011
=g-=% Tk
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR ARBTF
410,838 476,026
(366,208) (415,981)
44,630 60,045
4,113 5,404
(4,020) 2,169
(4,504) (1,503)
(54,926) (42,520
(11,583) (3,072
(976) (537)
(27,266) 19,986
(5,984) (11,162)
(33,250) 8,824
23 (175)
23 (175)
(33,227) 8,649
(30,157) 9,520
(3,093) (696)
(33,250) 8,824
(30,134) 9,345
(3,093) (696)
(33,227) 8,649
RMB(3.77) cents RMB1.19 cents
AR%EB.72 AR#E1.195

— 8D -

FLOBEFI4TEZWEB AT EREK Z
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Statements of Financial Position

BA RS IR L 2R

As at 31 December 2012
RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H

The Group The Company
i5E NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2-CF —E——F - —E——%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR®TRT ARETT AR®TR ARETTL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Prepaid lease payment BINEETIR 13 41,372 40,596 - =
Property, plant and equipment 9% - FiE k& 14 310,540 252,094 27 106
Available-for-sale financial asset Al HE SRV EE 15 9,000 9,000 - =
Investments in subsidiaries REBRR 2HE 16 - - 461,430 530,201
360,912 301,690 461,457 530,307
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Prepaid lease payment ANAENIE 13 878 850 - =
Inventories =g 17 178,896 81,156 - -
Trade and other receivables EWEZZREMTE 18 480,896 514,365 281,677 284,456
Pledged bank deposits BHERBETER 31 18,500 11,060 - =
Cash and bank balances R RFTEH 20 564,078 606,815 207 5,393
1,243,248 1,214,246 281,884 289,849
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE &
Trade and other payables ENESREMFE 21 173,852 101,663 4,690 1,041
Short-term bank loan REBETER 22 14,000 = - =
Deposits received and receipts B Uiz S KB
in advance 208,671 178,256 - -
Tax payable FERFIE 26(a) 9,094 14,977 - -
405,617 294,896 4,690 1,041
NET CURRENT ASSETS M EERE 837,631 919,350 277,194 288,808
TOTAL ASSETS LESS RERERTHAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,198,543 1,221,040 738,651 819,115
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥FHEEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEEE 26(b) 13,272 6,566 - -
NET ASSETS BEBE 1,185,271 1,214,474 738,651 819,115
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B &R Et M
Share capital [ 27 74,872 74,872 74,872 74,872
Reserves 1 28 1,113,444 1,139,554 663,779 744,243
Equity attributable to owners F2ATHBA
of the Company fEGiER 1,188,316 1,214,426 738,651 819,115
Non-controlling interests FRRES (3,045) 48 - -
TOTAL EQUITY #gaea 1,185,271 1,214,474 738,651 819,115

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on LEEeN T —=F=-A-_F+tHiE

27 March 2013 R %
Jiang Quanlong TEIREE Jiang Lei BE
Director 2 Director EZE

The notes on pages 49 to 147 form part of these financial FLOBEF4TEZHEBATERE Z
statements. —&kp o



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTREARH
Enterprise  Statutory Share Non-
Share Share  Special ~ Capital expansion  surplus Translation ~ option Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Subtotal interests  equity
PRME  HEER L] FER #a

Bs BHER WUER BAER 0 BE 0 ER ERER 0GR REEW 0 Mt HR  RE
RMBOOO RMBODD RMBOOD RMBOOD RMBO00 RMBOOD RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOD  RMBIODD  RMBIOOO

ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note 28())  (Note 28il)  (Note 28i)  (Note 28(v) (Note 28(v)) (Note 28(vi) (Note 28vi)
(Wizkos) (Wiskos(i) (Wiskos(iy) (Wskos(y) (Miskos) (Wisksd) (Afskosyi)

A1 January 2011 5—%F-8 TA8T2 419229 94225 183 45576 64848 (7206) 13841 500,664 1,205,081 441,206,825

Proft for the year FREF = - - - - - - - 950 95 (6%) 8824

Other comprehensive income  E-Ah 2 Elkas
(exchange differences (BEE Rz,
on translation of fivancial  [EX £5)
statements) - - - - - - (175) - - (175) - (175)

Total comprehensive income~ 2 AL E S - - - - - (175) - 950 9345 (6%) 8649

Transfer to retained pofts B ERHEER
upon lapse of share options ~ ZRE - - = - - - - (778) 8 - - -

Transfer to reserves ERGR - - - - 820 820 - - (1640 = = =

At 31 December 2011 and ~ R=5——%
1 January 2012 +-A=t-A

R-E-—E-F-H 74872 419229 94,225 138 46,395 55,668 (747) 13063 518312 1,214,426 48 1,214,474
Lossfoolt ortheyear £ (B8),/ 47 - - - - - - - i) Gote) By 20
Other comprehensive income K12 Ei3
(exchange differences (BEBBRRL
on translation of financial  EH £E)
statements) - - - - - - 2 - - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive loss  Z2EEIELE - - - - - - 23 - (0,457)  (30,134) (3,009  (33,227)
Transfer to retained Profits SRR IEL A
upon lapse of share options ~ ERZRFE&F - - - - - - - (720) 20 - - -
Equity-settled share-based A& &R
transactions AR5 - - - - - - - 404 - 40 - 404
At 31 December 2012 i
tZA=1-H 74872 419229 94225 133 46395 55,668 (7448 16,367 488,875 1,188,316 (3,045) 1,185,271

The notes on pages 49 to 147 form part of these financial FABEFIATEZWEB AT BERE 2
statements. — &b o



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—2--F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
Operating activities BEEIH
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiAT (E518),/ & F (27,266) 19,986
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment BesENRERE 878 518
Depreciation e 21,845 9,755
Dividend income from available-for-sale AEHESREEY
financial asset [LESION (1,000) (2,150)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payment HEEMNHAERE 2 Wet - (6,340)
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWE 53R IE 2 R E BB 1,028 -
Impairment loss on other receivable Hith RN TR 2R EE R 39 -
Impairment loss on deposit Be ZREEE 818 =
Interest expenses FERAX 976 537
Interest income SN ON (2,694) (3,061)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment R EE 9 3,882
Loss on written off of property, plant WEDE - BEMRE
and equipment 1= 3,942 -
Equity-settled share-based transactions BRAEERNDERRZ S 4,024 -
Reversal of impairment loss JEWE S BZ
on trade receivables REEERE - (80)
2,599 23,047
Changes in working capital EEEcER
Increase in inventories TEEM (101,396) (47,406)
Decrease in trade and eI 5 B HoAth kIR
other receivables N 23,473 21,618
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FERTE 5 R B At 5RIE
other payables #40/GRid) 72,189 (7,621)
Increase in deposits received and receipts Bl Kk IBd g
in advance 30,415 85,808
Cash generated from operations BERXRBEEZRS 27,280 75,446
PRC enterprises income tax paid BB SR (5,065) (15,6795)
Net cash generated from BEIDEEZ
operating activities bk g 22,215 59,771
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2012 2011
25 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
Investing activities BRETH
Interest received B U F B 2,694 3,061
Dividend received from available-for- ERHLESREE
sale financial asset WER 2 B B 1,000 -
Payments for acquisition of prepaid WEETE N A E TN K
lease payment (1,682) (39,550)
Proceeds from disposal of HEEMNAERBREHRE
prepaid lease payment - 10,671
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEKXE
plant and equipment FfS20A 1 -
Payments for acquisition of property, WM - BER
plant and equipment JERRK (72,475) (96,374)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI 17 513 0 (7,440) (6,560)
Net cash used in BRETBRA
investing activities ZH&BH (77,902) (128,752)
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid ERFE (976) (837)
Repayment of short-term bank loan MESRITEIER - (9,000)
Proceeds from short-term bank loan SHIRTTE AR R 14,000 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEZHEE (FRA)Z
financing activities &SR8 13,024 (9,537)
Net decrease in cash and cash EEEHRERERRAE
equivalent for the year HERDBRE (42,663) (78,518)
Cash and bank balances EMZHRERBITRHE
at beginning of year 606,815 685,503
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEERSE & BHE (74) (170)
Cash and bank balances at end of year ERZAERBITHEES 564,078 606,815
Analysis of the balance of cash and HeRSEARLEE
cash equivalents HEESN
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHE R 564,078 606,815

The notes on pages 49 to 147 form part of these financial FLOBEZFATEZHMEBAMB®RE 2

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and
Suite 6302, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
environmental protection (“EP”) products and equipment,
undertaking EP construction engineering projects, provision
of EP related professional services, and manufacture of EP
construction materials in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and investment holding.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

—R®H
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FTER DGR ([BARF]) Efe K
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of polices and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

2.

FEEHBE (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2(k) or (l) depending on the
nature of the liability.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

2. FEEITEE (H)

c)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEHRFK ()

(Continued)

d)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out in note 2(g)(v) and (iv).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any
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out in note 2(qg)(iv). When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 2(g)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or the
Company commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss
(see note 2(g)).

Property in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight-
line method, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 20 years
20% p.a.

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

Leasehold improvements 20%-100% p.a.

Motor vehicles 20% p.a.
Molding 100% p.a.
Plant and machineries 10% p.a.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except for land
held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, it
is accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f) Leased assets (Continued)

ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property, if any.

g) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale financial asset
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

= it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2 (g)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with note 2 (g)(ii).

- For unlisted equity securities carried
at cost, impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEBE (#])
(Continued)
g) Impairment of assets (Continued) g) XERE (&)
i) Impairment of investments in equity securities ) REZBZFREREME
and other receivables (Continued) B E (&)
For trade and other current receivables IR B B AT
and other financial assets carried at R E S EIKERR
amortised cost, the impairment loss is K2 H Ath 7 Bh FE WK
measured as the difference between HEEMEMEE

the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decrease and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESBE ()
(Continued)
g) Impairment of assets (Continued) 9) XERME (#)
i) Impairment of investments in equity securities ) RAEABFKEREME
and other receivables (Continued) B RE (&)

—  For available-for-sale financial asset, the - DUfLEESRE
cumulative loss that has been recognised EmME  RAF¥E
in the fair value reserve is reclassified REERZRRE
to profit or loss. The amount of the BESHHEERIE
cumulative loss that is recognised in @ RIEEER
profit or loss is the difference between RETEE T WEEK

the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
financial asset are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- prepaid lease payment.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FEEHBE (8)

g) Impairment of assets (Continued) g) XERE (&)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) i) EBEMEERE (&)
Recognition of impairment losses - HERBEEIE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit WEESERB 2
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, HeELBMNZK
or the cash-generating unit to which it HEEREBAE AU

belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

9)

h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see note

2(g)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of available-for-sale financial
asset and unlisted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value of
available-for-sale financial asset increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

h)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of
an asset or a group of assets, where the customer is
able to specify the major structural elements of the
design. The accounting policy for contract revenue
is set out in note 2(q)(ii). When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. Where the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period are recorded at the net amount
of costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the statement of financial position as
the “Amount due from customers for contract work”
(as an asset) or the “Amounts due to customers for
contract work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Deposits received and receipts in
advance”.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

k)

m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note

2(g))-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

n) Employee benefits

i)

ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

n) Employee benefits (Continued)

ii)

iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detail formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

Income Tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future
or, in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEBE (#)
(Continued)
0) Income Tax (Continued) o) FiEB (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BIVER 751 18 42 £4 A3 SE B 18 45
movements therein, are presented separately from REZFHEHESEIT AT
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are T o BIEABI & E RIETE
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax MEEERSEARAHAE
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company B H & A1) o8 Hl BT FI DA BD
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set BRFTIS B IR E E MBI AIFT 15
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities RIgaER - WAKFASATH
and the following additional conditions are met: RGBT - TR
SHENEA RGBRIERI B AR
- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, — HHBEEEKARE:
the Company or the Group intends either to Zﬁﬂﬁ_ﬁizl-‘%?r%ﬂﬁ
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and FREEELEE AR
settle the liability simultaneously; or BRZEEREEZE
&+ sk
-  in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - BEEBBEEEMARE:
if they relate to income taxes levied by the hWEEERABEBEYEH
same taxation authority on either: B—BEHEARATE
FEEBM S A
A
- the same taxable entity; or - BE-—ERTER:
57
- different taxable entities, which, in each - TRAZERBE
future period in which significant amounts B ZEEBEES
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are FER%&EBEESE
expected to be settled or recovered, ANEELEFIEEE
intend to realise the current tax assets HEBEXRNEE
and settle the current tax liabilities REF TE & B AT LA UK
on a net basis or realise and settle B2 AR &%
simultaneously. R A IR B AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

P)

q)

Provision and contingencies liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i)  Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered and the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred. Revenue
from sales of goods excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discount and returns.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue from a
fixed price contract is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total
contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Render of services

Revenue from professional services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(vi)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative at the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is different from the
Company’s functional currency of Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) as a majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

r

s)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of those entities within the Group which
have a functional currency other than RMB are
translated into RMB at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless the exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during the period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On the disposal of any of such entities, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
assets which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1) Related parties

a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

2. EESHBK (#8)
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a) WEBIULTAL BIEZA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESBE ()
(Continued)
t)  Related parties (Continued) )y BEAL (&)
b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the b) & T EMR G-
following conditions applies: (Continued) AlZEREAEEEH
i (5)
vi.  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled vii ZEBX@AFE
by a person identified in (a). EATESISER
PEH o
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant vii. (@ONFTEZE AL
influence over the entity or is a member HERBBEEATE
of the key management personnel of the B % E RS (5
entity (or of a parent of the entity). ZEBZERA)
ZCEEEBRENX
E o
Close members of the family of a person are EfI A TR IO R 2 46 i
those family members who may be expected ZEBRSHEHAF
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in BZRAANTHZZALT
their dealings with the entity. FENRFEKE °
u) Research and development costs u) R
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as WMEEE 2T HREEE R
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. WRAERYT -
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from AR HmEE 2N EE
development expenditure is recognised only if it WEFREE  REEEHEE
is anticipated that the research and development RRTEIEE EE ZHEKA
costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be HAIER A% 2SN
recovered through future commercial activities. ZIBERTRER o EREFERK
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less R K AN B R B OB (E B 1R
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of FIBR o REBEKARZMFT AL
development costs is charged to profit or loss on a AT MERZEZREEAZ

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. i °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
Chairman of the board of directors, who is the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.

FEEHBE (8)

v)

7R E

KRB BRRZZEN B R
ENEEB 22 B8 EHA
AEBZEFEEEREAN (B
FEERRAN]) EEEXFER
HADEER R EAEES
EBBR 2 RARMWEMEZ
B ER R ER

RHMBHEMS - RIFSHA
AR A0 A7 4 B L E o S R
BHE - - AEIFME  BEF
BAEER - BIEDIKE @
SRERBZ T EREERR
ZUHEHEMAL  BAREE
REBDHITIEELETEE - (@
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following new
and revised HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

Amendments to Financial Instruments,
HKFRS 7 Disclosures —
Transfer of financial assets

Amendments to Income taxes — Deferred tax,
HKAS 12 Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures
to be included in the financial statements in respect of
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety and for any continuing involvement in
transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer
transaction occurred. However, an entity need not provide
the disclosures for the comparative period in the first
year of adoption. The Group did not have any significant
transfers of financial assets in previous periods or the
current period which require disclosure in the current
accounting period under the amendments.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

BB REH

BRI ASCRMOZHBEY
BHREEZEBTL  BERALE
BRARNREMEAHEERE
oo K THFATRGETEE
MBERELERNEREESBERERA
A

BRMB®RE SRTE: ®E-
BT EECREE
(BETA)

BREHER] BN — BT

F£125% i - WemE
(BFTA) EEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ErBFEEH (|
(Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes BB EAFE125 (BETA) « FT
155
Under HKAS 12 deferred tax is required to be measured BIEBEBSFEAF129  BET
with reference to the tax consequences that would follow FATREREHIERAEE BEEBEHKE
from the manner in which the entity expects to recover the EHAEEREENANMEENN
carrying amount of the asset(s) in question. In this regard, BER UM E  BESFER
the amendments to HKAS 12 introduced a rebuttable F125% (185TAN) 5| A—IH0] T LA
presumption that the carrying amount of investment BrmRE - BREE B ERE
property carried at fair value under HKAS 40, Investment A0 EYFE AR TFEARNRE
property, will be recovered through sale. This presumption MEFRAESLBRBLEERE - WA
is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the BIREMET TUNE  MiTAR
investment property in question is depreciable and is held BEMENEEREANERN 21K
within a business model whose objective is to consume BB AR E D A B 25 BE I
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the HFE - MIEBBEEER - BlEE
investment property over time, rather than through sale. RR AR EERIERER - A%
The Group or the Company does not have any interest in B ARRWERNIREMEREEE
investment property, therefore it is not expected to have Az AREAREMETSY
a material impact on the Group’s or Company’s financial REBEBXARA ZHBEHRERIBKE
statements. TE o
4. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER 4. EXT HMkARHME
NET (LOSS)/INCOME (B]R), k&
2012 2011
~2—-F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT
Turnover 30
Turnover represents the net amounts SEEEANAEEHEE R
received and receivable for goods FEEE WA K
sold and revenue from construction RERBmMEEZ
contracts and rendering of services B Wk I8 K e W Sk IEF R
by the Group
Sales of EP products and equipment  IR{REE @ M RE 2 HEE 402,969 432,167
Sales of EP construction materials IRRBEMB ZHE 199 -
Revenue from EP construction RERRERIEZWA
engineering projects 6,068 37,193
Revenue from EP related RERRIBEAE RS 2 A
professional services 1,602 6,666
410,838 476,026
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TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER 4.
NET (LOSS)/INCOME (Continued)

Other revenue
Interest income on bank deposits

Total interest income on financial
assets not at fair value through
profit or loss

Dividend income from unlisted
available-for-sale financial asset

Reversal of impairment loss
on trade receivables

Rental income from operating lease

Sundry income

Other net (loss)/income

Gain on disposal of
prepaid lease payment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on written off of property, plant
and equipment

Net exchange loss

Htr A
RITEFH S WA

W IR RN FHERBE AR
LEREEZ
PSYAONE

FETMAHLESREE
ZBBHA

FE K E 5 SR IRUR (B B 1R 1 [

REHEZHSWA
R

KR (B1R) e
8 T R O 2

HEME - BEX
R B8

WIHE - BB M&iE
2 E518

[E B RFR

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5.

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting) the following:

a) Finance costs:
Interest on bank advances
wholly repayable within
one year

Total interest expenses on
financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss

BMERA :
AR—FAEHER
ZRITERZHE

W I NFER RS AR
ZERMBEZHNERX
R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

EXT HlARHEMS

(B#]|) ke (8)

2012 2011
—g—-%| -z =&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBFIT
2,694 3,061
2,694 3,061
1,000 2,150

- 80

53 53

366 60

4,113 5,404

- 6,340
(9) (3,882)

(3,942) -
(69) (289)

(4,020) 2,169

FRIAAT (E51R) iR
BBLA (BR) SRR EME /G

A) FHIEH
2012 2011
—g—=%| - &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEWTR | ARETR
976 537
976 537
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

5. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BR#RE (BR) &% (|
(Continued)
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRER (BB SEFME MBS (GE
(crediting) the following: (Continued) A) TFIFIE : (5)
2012 2011
~2——-F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARET T
b)  Staff costs (including directors’ b) BIRAK (BEEFHE)
emoluments) (Note): (Hiat) -
— Contributions to defined — ERMEFR IR Bt
contribution retirement (H17%7)
plans (Note 7) 1,432 1,307
- Salaries, wages and — I8 HeRhEMBER
other benefits 17,428 16,810
- Equity-settled share-based — RAGEE R ERA TR
payments 4,024 -
22,884 18,117
c)  Other items: c) EMIEH :
Amortisation of prepaid TE R E K8 2 5
lease payment 878 518
Auditor’s remuneration % EREN BN &
— audit services — BET AR 1,231 1,330
— other services — HAb R 458 448
Cost of inventories (Note) TFEXRAK (f1az) 339,260 345,513
Depreciation (Note) e (fi) 13,352 9,755
Impairment loss on trade FEUWE 5508 2 B EE 18
receivables 1,028 =
Impairment loss on deposits and e REAMBRGIAE L
other receivables BEEE 857 -
Operating lease charges TEHEERA
— leasing of properties — HAmE 999 1,545
— leasing of equipment — HA®RE 6 6
Research and development cost AR ID RN 8,568 =
Rental from properties MERSREERS
less direct outgoings (53) (53)
Note: Bia -
Cost of inventories includes RMB3,015,000 (2011: FEKARIEARKS015000T (=ZF
RMB8,036,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation, which ——4 : AR%8,036,000T) BEFAE T
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed RARITENSRE  ZZEBMENR

separately above. FIALIE B RBENBSHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RFESRERRIRZMFTR

a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of a) RigczEkmR IR

comprehensive income represents:

2012 2011
ot et —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Current Tax BNERTRIE
PRC enterprise income tax R B EEFTIS B
— current year —REE 310 9,448
— over provision in respect — BAEFEBRERE
of prior years (1,032) -
(722) 9,448
Deferred Tax RIERTE
Origination of temporary differences EF =R ELE
(note 26(b)) (H1at26(b)) 6,706 1,714
5,984 11,162
) The Company and its subsidiaries established ) ARFAREREBEX
in the British Virgin Islands are not subject to HERKY2HMBRAE

i)

income tax.

A uniform enterprise income tax of 25%
became generally applicable to all domestic
and foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC, subject to certain exceptions or
exemptions with effect from 1 January 2008.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012 as the Group’s income neither
arises in, nor is derived from Hong Kong.

i)

BRI FREH -

BE-ZET/N\F—H—H
B RBBEKRIZZAEAE
BARIERELEE
BRA25% 2 8 — (%
PRmBE - HET 0
SN FR BRI o

AR ALEE WAL IER
BEBEL NIIEXREBR
BoEE—_Z——F
MZFT—=—F+ZA=
+—BLEFEAERL
BB TS AE D B
ﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. RiFe2EKEFRZHMER
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (&)
(Continued)

b)  Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting b) ZRERABEFTE 2HRIES L HE
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: 25 (B8 BN zEHER
T~
2012 2011
~2——-F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETIT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREEAT (E518), & (27,266) 19,986
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before ZiEANER B R AER
taxation calculated at rates EX (B18),/ %5
applicable to (loss)/profits in Z IR ERRBA
the jurisdictions concerned (E518),/ % F
ZAEMIE (5,232) 5,649
Tax effect of non-deductible TABRAZ 2B E
expenses 253 130
Tax effect of TR
temporary differences mETE 5,611 i
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERHAREAHIE
not recognised B8 Mg & 5,279 3,658
Over provision in prior years BEFE 2 BEEREE (1,032) =
Tax effect of withholding tax R BB R &) AT 9 VR O
at 10% on distributable profits 10% 7 R 840 TR
of the PRC subsidiaries RENRBZE 1,105 1,714
Income tax expenses Fr8®i sz 5,984 11,162
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS
Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan managed by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and
its employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
contributions from each of the employer and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month with effective
from 1 June 2012 (Prior to 1 June 2012: HK$1,000
per month) and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-sponsored retirement plan operated
by the local government in the PRC and these subsidiaries
make mandatory contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement plan to fund the employees retirement benefits.
The retirement contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries
are based on a certain percentage of the relevant portion
of the payroll of all qualifying employees in accordance
with the relevant regulations in the PRC and are charged
to profit or loss as incurred. The Group discharges its
retirement obligations upon payment of the retirement
contributions to the state-sponsored retirement plan
operated by the local governments in the PRC.

A new law of the PRC on employment contracts (the
“Employment Contract Law”) was adopted by the
Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress of
the PRC in 2008 and became effective on 1 January 2008.
Compliance with the requirements under the new law, in
particular, the requirement of severance payment and non-
fixed term employment contract led to increase in the staff
costs of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

BFEFIRE
EBEHRBRATE

BIEE B G ATEE T EES K
BEERBEIERE  AEEELH
ERBSRESHEBHERTEEE
([BESFE]) - BESETEITIA
W ZEANEE 2 EEERURKRET
2l - RIERESHE 58 (BB
Bx) REEBBESASEEEEM
BURA (E&E BatERAESFENE
) 25% MR & EIEHHER - B
rEREGASEZHKEZZE —=
FEXRXA—BEA,2508 T (2T —
ZHA—AA: §A1,000%T)
AL B EFEREIMER - H5Z
e AN SRE -

AEERTENBARZEENHS
HEEE MR AEFELBBERE
ZRWEFEE - ZEHBARR
ZIEBRE B 2 RAKAE T EH 852 5l
HEHFARREE ZRAKEBHEHRE
T ZETEMBARZERSH
RBERMEREREBEEFM A
BEHD 2B EBIL  RRIEFE
ZEBRE URBABELEZSHE
AFABER - AKEER BT EL
TBAEEYHBEREDZRKE
B REISEBITENER
BRABHNITEZEE -

hEFEBERE ([SBaRE])
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A—BRBER - BTFHERZH
E BRI REME NIFEEHIRS
HERZRAEERAKEZETK
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

S

T —F+-A=t+—HIFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Continued)

Pursuant to the new Employment Contract Law, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to enter into non-fixed
term employment contract with employees who have
worked for more than 10 years or with whom a fixed term
employment has been concluded for 2 consecutive terms.
The employer is required to make a severance payment to
the employee when the term of the employment contract
expires unless the employee voluntarily terminates the
contract or voluntarily rejects the offer to renew the
contract in which case the terms are no worse off than
the terms of other employment contracts available to him/
her. The severance payment will be equal to the monthly
wages times the number of full years that the employee
has been working for the employer. The minimum wages
requirement has also been imposed. Fines will be imposed
for any breach of the Employment Contract Law.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
schemes beyond the contributions described above.

The contributions paid which have been dealt with in profit
or loss of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012 are as follows:

Contributions paid B R

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

The directors of the Company were members of the
senior management of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2011. Directors’ emoluments
disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Fees e
Salaries, allowances and

other benefits in kind
Contributions to retirement scheme

B Fla%
RIRE B3

Equity-settled share-based payments NI RN EN

¥ o ERAREM

BFEFIRE ()

BEHLESERE - AEMNERQ A
BED TE10FE M LB K& A
MR ETHREBERZEES
AIVEETEHREHARE - KRR
TEESBE R BRI SEEE AR
BEXMENE  KRIEEEBER
IFA R B BRIEBERIFHTER
HEnESZEMEHERIERZA
B BMEZ2IABHEENZESR
SATIEFRNZEEE BEETE
MNTEBFH - WINEBEHRRETLE
BE - BEHERZEZTMERE

& yBh =5

2B ©

AEE R Eil AN - BAEZ
FEFBAIE A M E BRI
BHWEREE -

AARKEHE-Z——FK=F
——F+-A=t+—RILFEZE
mZ EXHRINBMT

2012 2011
—E2—-F —E=——fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREFTT

1,432 1,307

EERERTRARBES

RBE-FT —_FR-F——F+
A=+ HUEFE RRFAES
TRASESREZENE - BRI
BB RAEBIFE 161165 5 2 B F M
A

2012 2011
—E—F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETIT

1,125 679

845 778

32 56

613 =

2,615 1,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESTTHARME
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#8)

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE_E-"F+-B=t+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
inkind Contributions Equity-settled
R to retirement share-based
RER scheme payments
Fees it BibEt Sub-total BFHER Total
Name of director EEta ik ENig BEtR it B8R A8

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ABRRTR  ARRTR  ARWTR  ARWTR  ARRTR  ARRTR

Executive directors ~ #{TEH

Mr. Fan Yajun BHERE L] - - 98 307 405
Mr. Gan Vi HRESE 98 205 24 327 123 450
Mr. Jiang Lei BRfti 556 285 4 845 - 845
Mr. Jiang Quanlong BRERA 98 355 4 457 - 457
Independent BIEBTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Lai Wing Lee BKFI 49 - - 49 61 110
Mr. Leung ShuSun,  Rifi#ik4

Sunny 177 - - 177 61 238
Professor Wang TERHE

Guozhen 49 - - 49 61 110

1,125 845 32 2,002 613 2,615
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESTHAE#M:E
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#8)

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE " E——%51+-A=+-RItFE

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
inkind  Contributions Equity-settled
%4+ toretirement share-based
e scheme payments
Fees £t RN Sub-total RALEE Total
Name of director EEhA ik BNl Eill s U5y RiA 30 pk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTR

Executive directors BTEE

Mr. Fan Yajun LRERE 100 - - 100 - 100
Mr. Gan Vi HEEE 100 180 48 328 - 328
Mr. Jiang Lei BERE 100 264 4 368 - 368
Mr. Jiang Quanlong ERERE 100 334 4 438 - 438
Independent BUFRTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Lai Wing Lee RKFIEAE 50 - - 50 - 50
Mr. Leung Shu Sun, PR kL

Sunny 179 - - 179 - 179
Professor Wang TEHE

Guozhen 50 - - 50 - 50

679 778 56 1,613 - 1,613

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the directors held N_EBE——FR_FT—F+=A
share options under the Company’s share option scheme. —t+—H EERBEAQAERRE
The details of the share options are disclosed under the RIS EERE -  BEBREFS
paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in note 29 to the R ISR R FE29 [BBRR =T 2 |
financial statements. During the years ended 31 December — R -REEE——-FKR_FT—
2012 and 2011, no directors of the Company had waived —F+_A=1+—HIEFE xR
any emoluments and no emoluments was paid or payable AMEEEERETMMMEe AL
by the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the By ES NS EZ N EABSER
Group, or as compensation for loss of office. REMASRIMARNER R 2 84

SkBERL 2 B (E
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2011: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other two (2011: two) individuals are as
follows:

Salaries and allowances e KRR
Equity-settled share-based
payments

Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET B R

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation of loss of office (2011: Nil).

The emoluments of the remaining two individuals other
than the director fall within the following bands:

Bands: #7
Nil to RMB817,720
(equivalent to HK$1,000,000)
RMB817,720 (equivalent to
HK$1,000,001)
to RMB1,226,580
(equivalent to HK$1,500,000)

BN A B RLAD 15 3K

TE AR®ES17,7207T
(}E 1,000,000 7T ) 1 1
AR¥817,7207T
(#8% 71,000,001 7T)
= AR#1,226,5807T
(#8% 71,500,000/ 7T) 1 1

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

EEMeAL

EusaMEATBE=ML (22—
—F =) BEF  EMFBEEN
M8 A T (ZF——F : W
f) ALZBEmT

2012 2011
~2——-F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFIT
1,329 1,105

682 -

22 20

2,033 1,125

FR - BEAAUSSHE AL (8
RESREMESR) IHERBEE
BARE AR ARE B2 28
SHBBEE (ZE——F F) o

ZEHRTRMUAL (BRI 2B
SHERMAT

2012 2011
—E2——F —E——fF




Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 10. XOFHAEARGEE

COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of KABHEBEANEBEEGEABERRE

the Company includes a loss of approximately E 18 4 A R #14,088,0007T (= &

RMB14,088,000 (2011: a loss of approximately ——F: BEH AR332,000

RMB9,332,000) which has been dealt with in the financial L) EEARRB M BREF R

statements of the Company. 3 o

11. DIVIDENDS 11. BRR2

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a EEEETRHEE-_ZE——F+

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: ZA=T—HLEFEZRE (ZT—

Nil). —F )

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B (BR) 2%

a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share a) EBREX (BR)EA
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (BB BRNHE
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the RARBHEE AEEEBLOA
Company of approximately RMB30,157,000 (2011: R #30,157,0007C (=& ——
profit attributable to owners of the Company of F AR RER A ST
approximately RMB9,520,000) and the weighted AR¥9,520,0007T) RFAE
average number of 800,000,000 ordinary shares %% 17800,000,0000% (= & —
(2011: 800,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during —4F : 800,000,0000% & 38 A% )
the year. LRz ETHEEE -

b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share b) EREE (FB8) &F
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share equal to basic (loss)/ AR ERNAR R ARITEER
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December BZITEESRARRRDZ
2012 and 2011 as the exercise price of the Company’s FHmE BEZZE——FK
outstanding share options were higher than the average —T——H+_-_A=+—Hit
market price of the Company’s shares for the year and FEZEREE (BB &
therefore the computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per FHERSERERN(BEER)
share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s BF - At SREE (58),/
share options. BNz BEXEBERARAZ

BRI TIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 13. AftHEERE
The Group
.31
2012 2011
-5 —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARMBTIT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FYRMEE 41,446 6,745
Addition during the year FRRE 1,682 39,550
Disposal during the year FAHE - (4,331)
Amortisation B4 (878) (518)
Carrying amount at end of year FEREREE 42,250 41,446
Analysed by: DT ¢
Non-current portion JEBNER =R 1 41,372 40,596
Current portion IR 878 850
42,250 41,446
The prepaid lease payment represents prepayment of A HERIERBEFR BHHEAEER
lease premium for land situated in the PRC under medium YRZURFE BN LHES -
lease term. The amortisation charge for the year is REFHIBERFAGE2E Y
included in “general and administrative expenses” in the K2 [ —MBRITBRAZIA -

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BHE_Z——F+-_A=+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - BEREE
The Group NEME
Furniture,
fixturesand  Leasehold Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment improvements  machinery vehicles Molding in progress Total
ol RE BENE
#¥ R RE  BERES RE #a HERIE ]
RVBOO  RMBOD  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RVBOOO  RMBOO  RVBOO
ARETR  ARETT ARETR AREBTr ARETR ARETr  ARETT ARET:R
Cost: BE:
As at 1 January 2011 R=E-——%-A-H 52,584 2,308 12,870 18,739 9,341 - 119,043 214,885
Additions A 1,320 246 681 580 906 - 92,641 96,374
Transfer 1 87,108 - - 64,034 - 1,904 (153,046) -
Disposal e (16,939) - - - (121) - - (17,666)
Exchange adjustment % - 4] ¢] = - = = (16)
Asat 31 December 2011&  W-E——E+-B=1-H
1 January 2012 —2-—-%-f-H 124,073 2,547 13,542 83,358 9,620 1,904 58,638 293,577
Additions RE 692 209 185 1,192 - - 81,965 84,243
Transfer i - - - 3,387 - 5,714 (#1,101) =
Disposal e = (100) - - - - - (100)
Witten off ik (6,742) = - = (1,010 = = (7,752)
Exchange adjustment EHAR = (1) ) - - - _ @
As at 31 December 2012 WZE-—F+-A=1+-H 118,023 2,695 13,725 119,932 8,610 7,618 99,502 369,965
Accumulated Depreciation: ~ REHTE :
As at | January 2011 R=E—%-f—H 19,585 1,701 1,077 11,120 5,571 = - 39,004
Charge for the year REERY 2,029 215 1,002 4,467 1,090 952 - 9,755
Written back during the year R[] (6,611) - - - (654) - - (7,265)
Exchange adjustments ERAE = 4 4 - - - - 1)
Asat 31 December 20118 W-E——%+-A=+-H
1 January 2012 k=F--%-f-H 14,953 1,909 2,075 15,587 6,007 952 - 41,483
Charge for the year TEEHR 5,610 200 20 9,444 986 5,385 - 21,845
Written back on disposal HEER - (%0) - - - - - 90)
Written off s (2,901) - - - (909) - - (3,810)
Exchange adjustments R - ) ) = - - - @)
As at 31 December 2012 RZE-——F+-fA=t-H 17,662 2,018 2,293 25,031 6,084 6,337 - 59,425
Carrying Amounts: R :
As at 31 December 2012 W_E-—%+-R=1+-H 100,361 637 11,432 94,901 2,426 1,281 99,502 310,540
As at 31 December 2011 W-E——%+-f=1+-H 109,120 638 11,467 67,766 3,513 952 58,638 252,004
Notes: KBiaE
a)  Building with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB801,800 a) HRMEE A& H A R801,8005T
(2011: RMBNIil) was pledged to the Group bank loans (see (Z2——F: ARBZT D) 21&
note 22). FEERANERASERITER
(RMiz22) -
b)  Included in the addition of RMB84,243,000 (2011: b) FA - T ABEARKS4,243,000

RMB96,374,000), approximately RMB3,657,000 (2011:
RMB171,000) were transferred from inventories during the
year.

TT (=T ——% : AR06,374,000
TL) ZABE N ZREBEFHARE
3,657,000 (ZE——4F: AR
#171,000T) BEATFE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W%  BERBE (&)
(Continued)
The Company VNN
Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements
& HE Total
RERERE MEEE HE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Cost 5%
As at 1 January 2011 n—ZE——F—A—H 213 254 467
Additions R 17 - 17
Exchange adjustment B 5 3% (8) 9) (17)
As at 31 December 2011 and RZTE——F
1 January 2012 +=-A=+—H
EZE——F%—F—H 222 245 467
Additions NE 18 - 18
Exchange adjustment 0E 3 A% (1) (1) (@)
As at 31 December 2012 R-T——F
+=—RA=+—8H 239 244 483
Accumulated depreciation RS
As at 1 January 2011 n—E——F—H—H 192 78 270
Charge for the year RNEERY 20 82 102
Exchange adjustment bE 3 A% (7) (4) (11)
As at 31 December 2011 and RZT——F
1 January 2012 +=-A=+—H
;rZT——F—H—H 205 156 361
Charge for the year KEERY 15 82 97
Exchange adjustment B R (1) (1) 2
As at 31 December 2012 NZT——%F
+=—RA=+—H 219 237 456
Carrying amounts IREE
As at 31 December 2012 NZE——F
+ZA=+—H 20 7 27
As at 31 December 2011 NZE2——F
+ZA=+—H 17 89 106
a) Al the buildings are situated in the PRC and are held a) FTEEFHRS BRI+ Ef

under medium-term lease. HEGRFRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 15. AfHHESMEE

The Group
AERE
2012 2011
—E—CfF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Unlisted equity securities in the PRC, R AR E 2 A E
at cost ELETRAES
Balance at beginning of year FYEH 9,000 6,850
Addition NE - 2,150
Balance at end of year FRER 9,000 9,000
The carrying value of the above unlisted investment FHidE MR ENERABEATERH
represents 5% equity interest in a private entity MR 2 FLAERE 2 5%/ o I
incorporated in the PRC. The unlisted equity securities, FAEEHMEEMFACIELTRA
which is not held for short-term trading, were carried at BHEERNLEERTISMMRE
cost less accumulated impairment losses as they do not BEERAFETEAZtE (AE
have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair By AFEMGFTEHETSEZ) i)
value cannot be reliably measured because the range of BRANR R ETREE 1B BR -
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant.
16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMBATZIRE
The Company
EANF
2012 2011
—Z2——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARETT

Unlisted shares, at cost BT E 2 IE TR 461,430 530,201
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BT 8~ R FRIE

(Note 18) (H1:#18) 281,044 282,696
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, WK B ARZIEAEIRE 28

interest-free and repayable on demand. N BIR BB E RN o
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Pan Asia Environmental
Protection Technologies
Limited

Dragon Commend Limited

Wuxi Pan Asia
Environmental Protection
Technologies Limited

BH7ERERR
BRAF

Place of
incorporation
and type of
legal entity
SRR
HREELE

British Virgin
Islands, limited
liability company

KBRLES
BRAR

British Virgin
Islands, limited
liability company

RERLES
BRRA

The PRC,
jointly-

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTR
WERE
HEmEE

Us$200/
Ordinary Share
200%7T,/
il

USs$1/
Ordinary Share
1%/
EBR

US$42,609,000/
Registered Capital

foreign-owned  42,609,000%7t,/

enterprise
HE - SN
RELE

A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

16. RB AT ZKRE (&)

Group’s
effective
interest
*5E
ERER

100%

100%

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FERBR
gy

Investment holding/
Hong Kong
REERR /&R

Not yet commence
business/
Hong Kong
LEEX/BE

MEABIENT :

Proportion of ownership interest
WRELA

Held Held
by the by a
Company subsidiary
::E- B
G N2 ]
100% =
100% -
47.7% 52.3%

100%

Manufacture and
sales of EP
products and
equipment,
undertakes
EP construction
engineering
projects and
manufacture of
EP construction
materials/
the PRC

RREMREREL
BUERIHE - AR
RRERIRE
R REGERR
BEME/ PE



5an Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited 2R IRIREBERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/
incorporation registered Group’s
and type of capital effective
legal entity BHTR interest
Name of subsidiary M I hE R BERE/ F5EH
WELRRE ERRENE dMmks RRES
Pan Asia Environmental The PRC, HK$100,000,000/ 100%
Protection (China) wholly- Registered Capital
Company Limited foreign-owned 100,000,000/,
R BRI (RE) BRAR enterprise A
HE - M
BEGE
Wuxi Zhong Dian Kong The PRC, RMB5,000,000/ 100%
Leng Technology Limited domestic- Registered Capital
EHTAHELREA invested limited AR
BRAT liability company ~ 5,000,0007T,/
RE - BRRE AR
BB AT
EEBEROVREBRAF  The PRC, RMB10,000,000/  100%
domestic- Registered Capital
invested limited AR
liability company ~10,000,0007T /
HE - BARE e
BRAA
Shanghai Environmental The PRC, RMB10,750,000/  70.05%
Engineering Design & joint stock Registered Capital
Research Institute limited company AR
Limited RE - R 10,750,0007% /
PEREIRZAAER AR AR AR
BRAA

BAELG
Held Held
by the by a
Company subsidiary
::E-3 e
G N2 ]
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 70.05%

16. RB AT ZKRE (&)

Principal activities
and place of
operations
IERER
B

Manufacture and
sales of EP
products and
equipment and
undertakes EP
construction
engineering
projects/
the PRC

RREMRRREL
B T 85 Rk
REERIR
HA /'

Investment holding/
the PRC
REER

Undertakes
EP construction
engineering
projects/
the PRC
RIERRER
IRER /&

Provision of
professional services,
manufacture and
sales of EP
products and
equipment
and undertakes
EP construction
engineering projects/
the PRC

REEZRS
RRERRSE
ZEEREE R
AERRERLE
HA /HE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

[ NGEA

Rz
BRD

Note 1: The English names for the companies which were

Place of
incorporation
and type of
legal entity
HEMERILR
ERERNE

KRR The PRC,
7l domestic-
invested limited

liability company

TE - BAKE
BRAF

BERA L2 The PRC,
al joint stock
/f

hE - D
BRARF

limited company

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRTR
e
MR E

RMB2,000,000/
Registered Capital
ARE
2,000,0007T /
BREN

RMB10,000,000/
Registered Capital
ARE
10,000,0007% /
BRIIEN

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

16. RB AT ZKRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

WARLA

Held
by the

Group’s
effective
interest
*5ME
ERES

HE
LFHE

70.05% =

49.04% -

MaET

incorporated in the PRC are not officially registered but
included here as a translation for identification purpose.

Company subsidiary

Held
by a

Principal activities
and place of
operations
IERBR
MR

HME
LAFER
100%  Dormant during
the year/the PRC
FRLEEE /HE

70%  Manufacture and
sales of EP
products and
equipment
and undertakes
EP construction
engineering
projects
and provision of
professional
services/
the PRC

RIREm KR
ZBUERIHER
EERRERTR
BHH - Bt
R,/ HE

WA B 2 AR ZH#EX
HBAGFEAEMEL Z2H
T ARHRE P PR AT
REEME - HEFIZA -
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BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

17. INVENTORIES

Raw materials B
Work-in-progress R
Finished goods BIFK

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZERAE

17. K
The Group
AERE
2012 2011
—2—CF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
4,659 11,254
103,993 4,335
70,244 65,567
178,896 81,156

RERBAX I ABREZFES

BEOMWT :
The Group
Xx5EE

2012 2011
—E2——F —=——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTTT
339,260 345,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BB H R HEMRIE
The Group The Company
£ 3| YN
2012 2011 2012 2011

“B-"F | T —F | Z8-Zf | _T—F
RMB’000 | RMB'000 [ RMB’000 | RMB'000
AR®TR | ARBTL | ARRTR | ARBTT

Trade receivables W E 5508 133,189 141,530 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J& : REREE (2,104) (1,076) - -

131,085 140,454 - =

Other receivables Hh pEUGRIR 125,802 119,479 81 122
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J& : REEEE (186) (147) - -
125,616 119,332 81 122

Amounts due from a related e BaE A A

company (Note 19) FIR (KfiE19) - 6,100 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EENGTE €

(Note 16) (H15£16) - = 281,044 282,696
Loans and receivables B NEWNIAE 256,701 265,886 281,125 282,818
Prepayments and deposits BNRERES 71,569 120,581 552 1,638
Other tax recoverables HahaT g o7 & 34,492 9,773 - -
Amounts due from HEFEL

customers for contract TEFIE

work (Note 25) (#f:#25) 118,134 118,125 - =

480,896 514,365 281,677 284,456

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s AREBERARAREMHR —FEHK
prepayments and deposits expected to be recovered Bl ERRAI 2 BANREBERRS
or recognised as expense after more than one year is S RlEAR400,5937T (ZFE——
RMB400,593 (2011: RMB241,000). All of the trade and F: AR®241,0007T)  Br i zE25
other receivables (including amounts due from a related FratEsh - FTERIKE 5 R E MR
company and subsidiaries), apart from those mentioned B (pErRk—HEEARREER
in note 25 are expected to be recovered or recognised as AIFIR) BN —FAKEKERS

expense within one year. X e
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

a)

Ageing analysis

Trade receivables are net of allowance for doubtful
debts and the ageing analysis presented as of the
end of the reporting period is as follow:

0-30 days 0E30X
31-60 days 31E60X
61-90 days 61E90K
91-180 days 91E180K
181-365 days 181E365K
Over 365 days 365K A

The Group normally grants credit terms from 1
to 2 months to its customers. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 36(a).
Trade receivables generally include the balances
yet to be due such as the quality retention
monies of approximately RMB43,731,000 (2011:
RMB60,564,000) (typically 5% to 20% of the total
contracted value) that are retained by the customers
until the fulfilment of the warranty period of generally
1 to 2 years and receivable pursuant to the payment
terms of the respective contracts.

18. BB R HAMMRIT (&)

a)

R 20 AT

FEU R 5 SR B
0 S5 5K 2 51 2 B 47
o :

2012 2011
—E—_%F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
59,209 13,334
5,473 17,659
12,618 20,433
33,312 21,915
12,828 34,995
7,645 32,118
131,085 140,454
AEFEBEFERARLRETIE

EAZEEH - AEEREE
Bz —SHBEHAME
36(a)c BRESHRE—KE
EARINEHEE  RESES
W2 ZITERERER - BE P
REBEEBREAIE2EZER
HRTALEZEZREISNA
AR 43,731,000 (—Z & —
—fF : A R #60,564,0007T)
(—BANBEEAZSRE
20%) °
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly (see note 2(g)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

18. BB R HAMMRIT (&)

b)

At 1 January n—A—H
Impairment loss recognised EERBEBE
Reversal of impairment loss NEREYEtdE

At 31 December R+—BA=+—8H

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of
approximately RMB2,104,000 (2011: approximately
RMB1,076,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. These individually impaired receivables
were outstanding for over 90 days as at the end of
the reporting period or were due from companies
with financial difficulties. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

FE s B 5 FRIE 2 R B

e E SRR ZBEEBRTIRN
BB HER - BRIFAKEN
FEREZERZATREERE -
AR EBREERRERE
SR (RHE2(g) -

RERERID) 0T

2012 2011
—E—_%F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
1,076 1,156
1,028 =

- (80)

2,104 1,076

RNR—_F——F+-_A=+—
H BUREBSHREBHOARK
2,104,000 (Z&——F : 4
AE#1,076,0007T) EERIE
EABME - ZEEAIREZFE
I FRIE P ¥ 5 B R 8 B 1890
B kB A REE 2 QA
KRG - REBHZELEHILE
BB EEIRY o
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BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The factors which the Group considered in
determining whether these trade receivables were
individually impaired included the following:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o receivables that have been outstanding for a
certain period;

o the granting to the debtor, for economic or
legal reasons relating to the debtor’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the Group would
not otherwise consider;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor;

18. BB R HAMMRIT (&)

b)

W E 5 RE2mE (&)

REBRETZSERE SN
HEABERRERMEREZ
A=0T -

s BEBRABEAMBIN

s EREKH mBHiskie
REENBHAE

s REURFEBECEHER —BE
=

s AKHEERBEEBAZ
MRRHERHEEBEX
ERER BRTEBA
—EAEEEEMIBFR
TTEERZEY

s BERABAIEHERE
TTEME B EA

. B WB- EERE
BREBEANE I
BB ABTHEE
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

c)

d)

Trade receivables that are past due but not
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired is as follows:

Less than 1 month past due wHEDR1EA
1 to 3 months past due #HER1 =31E B
More than 3 months past due w1 ER R B (E A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Other receivables

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand and included an
amount of approximately RMB97,230,000 (2011:
RMB97,230,000) advanced to the local government
departments of Guannan County, Lianyungang
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of this balance as the balance is still
considered fully recoverable.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

18. BB R HAMMRIT (&)

c)

d)

CBHERBEZERESHK
|
DBHERREZ ERE SR
B BREDITIOT
2012 2011
—E—_%F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETIT
8,191 6,468
21,911 14,354
5,285 33,946
35,387 54,768

BE R 780 8 TR AR ORL (B 2 B W SR TR
B1% 2T B A ROE SRR R
BEFHR -

B 8 BB KRB E < e Y 5k 0R B
SEBREAEEERIER
L ZBITFAR - ERXB
TR BREEERTES
RENAZEHRBIDRERT
2EME - WEREREHA
LA BRBELRERRE - &
SEYVERERXERBEEN
Efm e

H b FE KR IE

ZRETERE - 2B RAR
ZRENEREBEEEMNT
FRIEEESEMERSEE
TP 2 BRI AR
97,230,0007T (Z&F — —F -
A R #97,230,0007T) ° & 12
BHE @ ARZEHREIEE
BRI 2HWE - ARREEAE
BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

d)  Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, other receivables also included
an amount of approximately RMB5,000,000 arising from
the disposal of subsidiaries in 2009. The amount was
fully recovered during the year.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

18. BB R HAMMRIT (&)

d HEWKRE (&)

R=_ZF——F+=_A=+—
B HtEKZREIEEE =
ZENFREMBRARIEE Y
& H 4 AR ¥5,000,0007T 2
B ZEFBRFREBH
e

ERERERID) 0T

2012 2011
—Z2—-F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTTT
At 1 January n—A—H 147 147
Impairment loss recognised EHERREERE 39 -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 186 147
19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 19. FBEURRE L FIRIA
COMPANIES
The Group The Company
350 348
Year ended Maximum amount Year ended Maximum amount
31 December outstanding 31 December outstanding
BETCA=T-ALEE FRERRLM HETA=T-ALEE FRERRLM
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Name of 8- “E—-F | IB-Z “E-F | I8-Z “E-F | Z8-Z “E-f
company Connected party RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB'000
LRER REn ABRTR | ARETL | ABRTR | ARETR | ABRTR | ARETn | ABRTR | ARETR
Yixing AGC Ceramics A company in which Mr. Jiang
Co. Limited Quanlong, a director
(‘AGC") of the Gompany, is also a director
HEMRTIE AAAESERERLNELES
EEERAT paAN|
(Ieez ) - 6,100 6,100 6,100 - - - =
- 6,100 6,100 6,100 - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED
COMPANIES (Continued)

19. BEFREXTIRIT (&)

The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand. NERE KB EER o
20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20. e REBITHER

RBE_Z——_FR_T——F+
ZA=T—HIEFE  KNFHRE
NMRITEBIAARYE (REREET
B ETRERABR I EE) HE -
ARBEEXHFEBNEE @ £F
BEL g BAXPREBAAAM
B AN 2 SNEE B I FR PR o SR1T 4% BR T
ETXE05%(ZTE——F: TF
0.5%) ZTHHFEH K -

A major portion of the cash and bank balances for
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 was
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international money markets. The
exchange rate of RMB is determined by the Government
of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
Government of the PRC. The bank balances carry interest
at market rates ranging from Nil to 0.5% (2011: Nil to
0.5%) per annum.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BN ESREMKRIEA

The Group The Company
x5E ENF
2012 2011 2012 2011
- F | T——% | ZB-ZF | _T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE | ARETT | ARBTRE | ARETT
Trade payables ERE S5IA 136,818 60,418 - -
Accruals and other payables et ER M EAM
eI FRIB 27,803 35,250 1,587 1,041
Amount due to a director N —hIEEHE
(Note 23) (Bi3t23) 2,677 1,589 3,103 -
Amounts due to related FEfT R A R FUE
companies (Note 24) (B1it24) 2,258 23 - -
Financial liabilities measured LABESE AR NG 2 )
at amortised cost THERE 169,556 97,280 4,690 1,041
Other PRC tax payables H b e R B AR TR 4,296 4,383 - -
173,852 101,663 4,690 1,041
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 21. B SR EMHRIEAE (iF)
FERNE S REMZKE (BIEEN
BERZHE)  HREHR —FERE
Sk BER A A 3R B R B BN

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due
to related parties) are expected to be settled or recognised
as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

jﬁ o
a) Ageing analysis of trade payables a) ENEZERZERERIN
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: FERTE 5 8RR 2 R 2 4T 40
™
The Group
.34

2012 2011
—E—F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
0 to 30 days 0%230H 50,290 5,306
31 to 60 days 31260H 12,081 565
61 to 90 days 61%£90H 7,077 5,510
91 to 180 days 912180H 20,146 3,215
181 to 365 days 181£365H 6,045 2,161
Over 365 days 3658 A £ 41,179 43,661
136,818 60,418

b) Accruals and other payables b) EBRARHEMEMTIE
FIEK AR ¥8,784,0007T (=
T——F: AR%8,784,000
JL) FE T RIMIE A Al o 5% 3K
BEER R RARENR
BNEFE N o

Included an amount of approximately RMB8,784,000
(2011: RMB8,784,000) due to a former subsidiary.
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

22. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS 22. EHISRITER

As 31 December 2012, the bank loans were repayable as R-_F——_H+-A=+—H &
follow: EEZRITERNOT :
The Group
x5KE
2012 2011
—2——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBFIT
Current liabilities REEE
Due for repayment within 1 year AR—FNEE 14,000 -
At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were secured as R—_EBE——F+=-_A=+—H8" B
follow: ERZRITERQOT :
The Group
x5KE
2012 2011
—2——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTRT ARET T
Bank loans HMITER
- secured — FKHE 9,000 -
- unsecured — IR 5,000 -
14,000 -

A bank loan of RMB9,000,000 is denominated in RMB
carrying interest at floating rate ranging from 6.56% to
7.216%. The remaining bank loan of RMB5,000,000 is
denominated in RMB carrying interest at fixed rate at
7.2%.

All of the secured bank loans, including amounts repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2012, bank loan of RMB9,000,000
of the Group are secured by the Group’s building with
an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB801,800 (2011: RMBNIl). The pledged buildings will
be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings.

SRITERAR#9,000,0007T A AR
BEETE - TR E B BN F6.56%
E7.216% 2 - HTIRITERAR
#5,000,0007C A A R¥EETE + FTHT
BEEBEEE7.2% °

FAEREMRITER (BRRERE
BHR) IMBHERARAR ©

RZE——F+-_A=+—H ' &
EBEZRTERDIAAEBERE@F
B ARES801,800T (ZT——
F: ARBERL) 2 EFERER -
EEEEFEREERTEEER
1% FRER IR I o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

23. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 23. Eff—GRIEERIA
The Group
F&Mm
2012 2011
—E—CfF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Mr. Jiang Quanlong BRESLE 2,677 1,589
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZAATEER - BB RAKREXK
demand. BIBF B3R ©

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 24, EFIRRELTIRIA

Name of company Connected party The Group
AEER REY FRE
2012 2011
—g—=%| -T—f
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTT ARBT T

Osram (China) Fluorescent Materials A company of which

Co., Ltd. (“Osram”) Mr. Jiang Quanlong,
ERRIRA (R EY) 2R BRA R a director of the
(TBx=1B8R 1) Company, is also a
director
RRAREEBRESRLE
MEAZEEZ AR 8 23
Benxi Fanya Environmental Heat & A company of which
Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Fan Yajun, a
KR HIRREBABFRA A director of

the Company, is
also a director

AARERLEELE
MEEEE AR 2,250 =
2,258 23
The amounts due to related companies are of trade ENBEATREBELZHEHE - B
nature and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on AEEE . 2B RARERAEE

demand. o
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

Contract work-in-progress at the end of the reporting period:

Contract costs incurred to date

Less: Progress billings B EERIE
Amounts due from customers
for contract work

The amounts due from customers for contract work at 31
December 2012 that is expected to be recovered after
more than one year is RMBNil (2011: RMB106,171,000).

In respect of construction contracts in progress at the end
of the reporting period, the amount of retention receivables
from customers, recorded within “trade receivable” at 31
December 2012 is RMB5,584,000 (2011: RMB2,370,000).
The amount of those retentions expected to be recovered
after more than one year is RMBNil (2011: RMBNIil).
Receipts in advance from customers for contract work
amounted to RMB39,418,000 (2011: RMB21,460,000).

LS EHEEZ BRI
Recognised profits less recognised losses & # 2 5% FE B R E B

U EFAHTE

£RIA

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

25. BREFRSNIERT

RIERRATZERBAL

The Group
AERE

2012 2011
—E—CfF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREFTT
249,577 204,552
54,433 75,680
304,010 280,232
(185,876) (162,107)
118,134 118,125

N—ZEBE——-F+-_A=+—H  #
HR—FRRE s EBREFPEHT
EREAARES L (ZF—F ¢
AR #106,171,0007T) ©

BRRMERRCERIESLN
R_EB——F+=-—A=+—H2[E
WE SRR ARSI EREF 2 RE
A B ANR¥5,5684,0007C (Z & —
— & AR#2370,0007T) ° % &
FEHBR—FRBEZREBRIER
ARBZT (Z2—F : ARKEE
TL) c MREFAHNIRFEAAR
#39,418,000T (=& — —F : A
R#21,460,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

26. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Current taxation in the statement of financial
position represents

Provision for PRC enterprise B AT SRR
income tax

Tax charge waived BEHeHRBES H

Over provision in previous years @1 F[EHBRERE

Tax paid BEHiE

Balance of PRC enterprise HBEFEEBZ

income tax relating to prior year — H BSR4

Tax payable FERRIE

26. BBKRARAZFHER

a)

BN R A Z BN B IR 1R
The Group
AERE

2012 2011

—g-—f| -T—f

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

310 9,448

(96) -

(1,032) -

(3,057) (11,363)

(3,875) (1,915)

12,969 16,892

9,094 14,977
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26. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred taxation
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_ZT——H+-A=+—BItFE

26. BBKRARAZHRER ()

b) EEBIR

FRREATBRARERZ
E) NI

Depreciation

Withholding allowances
tax on in excess
undistributed of related
profits depreciation Total
koikiad BHERAEZ
Z TR it gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January 2011 R=—Z—F—H—H 4,852 - 4,852
Charged to profit or loss st A% (#7726(a))
(Note 6(a)) 1,714 - 1,714
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=A
and 1 January 2012 =t+t—-BR-ZE—=&
—H—H 6,566 - 6,566
Charged to profit or loss st A% (#7726(a))
(Note 6(a)) 1,105 5,601 6,706
At 31 December 2012 RZTE——F
+=-A=+—8H 7,671 5,601 13,272
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BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

26. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b)

Deferred taxation (Continued)

Pursuant to the New Enterprise Income Tax Laws,
a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from foreign investment
enterprise established in the PRC. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
tax rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividend distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008 onwards.
The Group recognised deferred tax liabilities in
respect of expected distributable earnings from its
subsidiaries established in the PRC since 1 January
2008 with reference to the Group’s dividend policy,
no matter whether any dividends have been declared
out of such earnings by the subsidiaries at the
reporting date. The directors of the Company will
review the funding requirements of the Group from
time to time and revise the dividend policy of its
subsidiaries as appropriate.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses of RMB18,446,000 (2011: RMB16,544,000)
which will expire from 2013 to 2017 as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

26. BBKARANZFRFR (1)

b)

EERE ()

RBFEEMREVE  ETE
RIZEVSNE R ERINEIRE
AT E K B B BB B 10% A 31
BebREB-_ZTZENF—A
—HEAR BRAR-TZt
FT_A=+T—BENEN -
fief o B B HNBE 4 B o P JB RDA
REIEHBEZHE - HATRE
EHEHLIEHN - AEH
mE - @ABEKI0%- - A
it AEB AL BRI
MBARR _ZETNF—H—
B AR E A 1O B N P 00 I O B
EHMENE - 58 —FF)N\
F—H—BREEFRBKILE
MB AR R £ &N T
5 ARERBERERE
BRELERBRE  ERB
RARBEERECBZER
MIRBAERE - ARBES
ARG ARENES R
Ko RBEERERENEAR
A BBGR o

ARRAERRI N 2SI
BISAEHTE

RZF—ZFR-F——F+
ZA=+—8 AEEVEH
BRZBE—=FE2=_F—+F
HEEPzZHEBEBARE
18,446,000 (=T — —F :
A R #16,544,0007T) W R IE
EMEBEEE  BABBEHER
FEERRERY A ERER
7R FE AR FR v B DA LI S 548 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. &
Authorised and issued share capital ETE REEITIRA
Number of
shares Amount
;208 4= &8
’000 HK$’000
T FTET
Authorised VETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R-E——FN—T——F
as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 +=—A=+—H&K
HE0. 1B BB 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid BEITREZE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE——FR-_ZE——F
as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 +-—A=+—H&K
HEC1B L EBEK 800,000 80,000

Equivalent to RMB74,872,000
HERAR®74,872,0007T

TRARBAEAGREDTEEIRZ
BREXEENRANABAE EAFK
—ERE - 2 EARYARRE
BREEMSBRF

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

28. RESERVES

The Group

At 1 January 2011

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income
(exchange difference
on translation of financial
statements)

Total comprehensive
income

Transfer to retained profits
upon lapse of
share options

Transfer to reserves

At 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive
income
(exchange difference
on translation of financial
statements)

Total comprehensive
income

Transfer to retained Profits
upon lapse of share
options

Equity-settled share-based
transactions

At 31 December 2012

28. &
*TKE
Enterprise  Statutory
expansion  surplus Share
Share  Special  Capital  reserve  reserve Translation option  Retained
premium  reserve  reserve 3 #E  reserve  reserve  profits
&in 3] &% R ER ER Rkt #Y Total
b 1] 1 ] 1 ] 1] 1 ] 1 ] it it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note (i) ~ (Note(i))  (Notefil)  (Note(s)  (Note())  (Note () (Note (vi)
() (s Omskgn)  Oskw)  (skw) Oiskw) (ski))
RZE——E-F-H 419229 94,225 133 45,575 54,848 (7,296) 13,841 509,664 1,130,209
ERE = = = - - - - 950 950
Ee2EkE
(BERERR L
EXZE)
} B, - - - (175) - - (175)
FENAES
§ . . - - (175) - 050 935
REREXNE
ERZREAT
i . . . - - 179) 778 -
BRERE = - - 820 820 - - (1640) =
RIE——F
+-A=+-8k
“E-ZF-F-H 419229 04225 133 46,395 55,668 (741) 13,063 518312 1,139,554
EMEE - - - - - - - (30,157 (30,157)
A 2ENE
(BERERKL
EXZE)
- - - - - 23 - - 2
FENELE
- - - - - 2 - (30,157  (30,134)
REREXNE
EREREGT
- - - - - - (720) 720 -
FagERG
AR5 - - - - - - 402 - 40
RZZ-ZF
+-h=1-A 419,220 94,225 133 46,395 55,668 (7448) 16367 488,875 1,113,444




28. RESERVES (Continued)

The Company

At 1 January 2011

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
(exchange difference on translation
of financial statements)

Total comprehensive loss
Transfer to retained profits upon
lapse of share options

At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss
(exchange difference on translation
of financial statements)

Total comprehensive loss

Transfer to retained profits
upon lapse of share
options

Equity-settled share-based
transactions

At 31 December 2012

R=2——%-A-H
ERER

Hip2EbE (A8
BRCENZER)

PARREE
REREANABAE
(R

RZZ-——F
tZA=+-Rk
e

EMER
At EABE (RN
BRCENZE)

2EEREE
RERERNE
EREREER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

28. f%flm (#8)

. /N
Share
Share  Contributed Translation option  (Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
k&R #ARS ER L BT | (RitEH) ax
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note (i) (Note (iv)) (Note (vi)) (Note (vii)

R (rzki) (ki) (BirzEvin)
419,229 372,178 (44,787) 13,841 (10,151) 750,310
_ _ = - (9,332) (9,332)
- - 3,265 - - 3,265
- - 3,265 - (9,332) (6,067)
- - - (778) 778 =
419,229 372,178 (41,522) 13,063 (18,705) 744,243
- - - - (14,088) (14,088)
- - (70,400) - - (70,400)
- - (70,400) - (14,088) (84,488)
_ - - (720) 720 =
- - - 4,024 - 4,024
419,229 372,178 (111,922) 16,367 (32,073 663,779
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

28. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is
distributable to the owners of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for
the acquisition of these subsidiaries at the time of
group reorganisation immediately prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares on 1 December 2007.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess capital
contribution from the non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary - 22  of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the net assets value of
subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

Enterprise expansion reserve and statutory surplus
reserve

Statutory surplus reserve and enterprise expansion
reserve are set up by the Group’s subsidiaries by
way of appropriation from the profit for the year in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC. In the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries
are required to allocate certain percent of its net
profit for the year as reported in their PRC statutory
accounts to the statutory surplus reserve and
enterprise expansion reserve until such reserves
reaches 50% of registered capital. These reserves
are non-distributable. The statutory surplus reserve
can be used to make up prior year losses of the PRC
subsidiaries, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of capitalisation issues. The
enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the
capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of
capitalisation issue.

28. f#ffE (48)

EZMEERBN
) BROEE

1)

i)

v)

RERSESQEDEEE
71) 0 ARaE zBOEER D
IKTARBEEAN  HEEERE
FOEKREERZI& - AAF]
ARRNEBENBEEBBIE
REEZER -

B e

AR B 2 K5 B k5 e P R B Y
B AR 2 E1E M 4 B
BERARBBRNR_FTLF+
ZA—BLEMAIARRIREE
BB % E B QB PT
BITRODcEEZER -

EX e

BAFEIERE TR
AEENBARERZD ZEB
BEE -

A ZER

BABBRIEARRRID HTE B
B HEEEREEEEHEG
BEMKBENB AR EER
HNZHE -

1D RIEIR 5 SOXTE B R 1

FEEBRFBEREERBRMAR
TR BB R BRZEEE R
BORREARBBOBFRE 5 A
R - AEBERTEZMER
A BDEEERBAERE T
2/ ETADLFEAN
ERTERBERREEERRE
B BEEREHREEZEME
K2Z50%° % ERFE AN
BE o SR TE B AR A A A S S 4
BEFETEMBLRZEE
(WA) RAIAERNCEITTZ
ABRAERN - PEBRES
BRARAEARCETT 2T\
AHEMBAR 2 EARER
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
vi)  Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the entities within the
Group whose functional currency is other than RMB.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(r).

vii)  Share option reserve

The share option reserve of the Company and the
Group arose upon on the grant of share options of
the Company and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 2(n).

Distributable reserves of the Company

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium and contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its share capital account.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB759,334,000 (2011: RMB772,702,000),
computed in accordance with the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman islands and the Company’s articles of
association. This includes the Company’s share premium of
approximately RMB419,229,000 (2011: RMB419,229,000)
and contributed surplus of approximately RMB372,178,000
(2011: RMB372,178,000), less accumulated losses of
approximately RMB32,073,000 (2011: RMB18,705,000),
which are available for distribution.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

28. f%flm (#8)

HEZHERBH (&)
vi)  FERfEE

EXREEERRERTGEER
FARBZAEEER 27
BREEZMBINEEZRE - K
I A AR AR BT FE2(r) P L& AT IR
BRI

vi)  FERIERE

RRBRAKEZ BREFE
TR H AR E 2 B E
£ RIZMEE2(n) T E & BT IR
RE2IE -

NN A 19

REMSBFEARADE (BER) @ K
0 (B R EMA BB 2K TIRE
HEfidd AN 2 B 32 B B SRR AR () T
RREEIHZERE  HMHATERE
EERERABEERARAFTZH
B ATHERIMRE - K
Befn it (8 - B AN BB 3 et 1 S A &2
BRIEH DK ©

RZE—=—F+=ZRA=+—8"
BEREEHS QAEEER)
EARAREBERMAGE
AARAHDIRTRE 2 FEEN B
A R #759,334,000C (= & — —
F: ARM772,702,0007T) © Z
HREAQRARMOEENARE
419,229,0007 (ZZT——F : AR
#419,229,0007T) R ABHBLIA
R #372,178,00070 (=T — — 4 :
AR #372,178,0007T) & B 5 E 18
4 A R #32,073,000T (Z & ——
£ AR#18,705,0007T) * A[{EH
DK °



&5
‘ San Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited o 2 IR EB AR A A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 1 December 2007. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options
to the following eligible participants:

)

i)

Vi)

vii)

il

any employee (whether full-time or part-time,
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
the Group holds an equity interest;

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue on the day on which trading of the shares
commenced on the Main Board (“General Scheme Limit”).
The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 80,000,000 (including those
granted but yet to be exercised), representing 10% of the
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
participant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue during the 12-month period
before the date of grant without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Any grant of options under the
Share Option Scheme to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
must be approved by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million within any 12-month period must be approved by
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

Unless otherwise determined by the directors of the
Company and stated in the offer of the grant of options to
a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the
Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option before
it can be exercised.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

An offer for the grant of options to a grantee shall be
accepted by no later than 21 days from the date of offer.
HK$1 per grant of options is payable on the acceptance
of the grant of options. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and expiring in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or upon the expiry of the tenth anniversary
of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is the earlier.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange on the
date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29, RERR#ERTE (48)

a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed a) TXEINFEZBREZRE
are as follows, whereby all options are settled by IR AR - Bt - FTE B
physical delivery of shares: EUABRMEBEYDRW S RNEER

I

Number of

shares

issuable

under options

granted
REMRRZ Contractual
PRRRE Vesting life of options
AIFRTZ conditions i {:2 ]
Bir& 8 BEEH SHER

Granted to directors: BTEE 2 HERE
- on 14 May 2008 ——2FN\F 5,800,000 one year 10 years
HA+MA —F +45
—on 11 June 2012 ——E——F 5,000,000 one year 10 years
~NA+—H —F +45
Granted to employees: KT EE 2 BIE

- on 14 May 2008 — —ZET)N\F 12,000,000 one year 10 years
HA+TA —& &
—on 11 June 2012 ——T——F 30,000,000 one year 10 years
NA+—H —& +4

Total number of shares 1R 15 1% 2 Bl A% 4
issuable under options A] T B 1TRY 1D 42 8
granted 52,800,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

a)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
are as follows, whereby all options are settled by
physical delivery of shares: (Continued)

On 14 May 2008, 17,800,000 share options were
granted for HK$1 consideration per offer to directors,
senior management and employees of the Group
under the Company’s Share Option Scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for

one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of the Company.
These share options vested on 14 May 2009, and
are exercisable until 13 May 2018. The exercise price
is HK$2.81 per share.

On 11 June 2012, 39,000,000 share options were
granted to directors, senior management and
employees of the Group under the Company’s Share
Option Scheme at a consideration of HK$1 for

each offer of which 35,000,000 share options were
accepted in July 2012. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of
HK$0.1 each of the Company. These share options
will vest on 11 June 2013, and will be exercisable
until 10 June 2022. The exercise price is HK$0.83
per share.

1,000,000 share options were lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 1,000,000).

No share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F#+-A=+—HIEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. MRERHERTD (48)
b) The number and weighted average exercise price of b) MEREZEE RMETFHITE
share options are as follows: BanR
2012 2011
. —Z——f
Number of Number of
Weighted shares issuable Weighted  shares issuable
average under options average  under options
exercise granted exercise granted
price RigmE price REFE
MEEY ERETRT METY  BRETES
fTER BB T8 ZRHEER
Outstanding at the beginning  F#iM AT
of the year HK$2.81# 7T 16,800,000 | HK$2.81%7L 17,800,000
Lapsed during the year FRER HK$2.82& 7T (1,000,000) | HK$2.81787T (1,000,000)
Granted during the year FREH HK$0.83i& 7T 35,000,000 = =
Outstanding at the end FIREAITHE
of the year HK$1.46i& T 50,800,000 | HK$2.817E 7T 16,800,000
Exercisable at the end FRA T
of the year HK$2.81&TT 15,800,000 | HK$2.81%E7T 16,800,000
The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-_A=+—H
had an exercise price of HK$2.81 or HK$0.83 HMARTHEEREZITEES
(2011: HK$2.81) and a weighted average remaining 2.817% 71.30.83B Tt (Z & —
contractual life of 8.175 years (2011: 6.375 years). —4F 281 T MEFXEYH

FIp B LFRAE8ATSFE (=
——% : B.375%) o
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on the binomial option pricing model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model.

29. MRRRHEETE ()

c)

Fair value of share options and Rz ATFE
assumptions R

Share price & &

Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility (expressed as TEHERR MR (A [ =38
weighted average volatility HETEREAA
used in the modeling under AT &R
the binomial option pricing model) =RR)

RS (A

Option life (expressed as weighted
average life used in the modeling

[—IR | BIEEE

under the binomial option B A
pricing model) MEFHFEIRT)
Expected dividends TEHAAR B

Risk-free interest rate
(based on Exchange Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

There were no service conditions or market
conditions associated with the share options
granted.

&M E (RIE
SNEEESRIR)

BREZAFEREBR
VAR H B AR e 1 15 2 R 7% 2
AT ERERBRE 2 XN TE
TR BRBREZMFATF
BERIZEX] HEEEER
FE - EREZANFHRI

Bz —TABARE -

Share options granted on

Bz EaE
11 June 2012 14 May 2008
-—%F —ZETNEF
~A+—H AATEA

HK$0.25/& 7T to
ES

HK$0.27#&7T | HK$0.881/ 87T
HK$0.83 8T | HK$2.79/8 7T
HK$0.83#TT | HK$2.81 87T
54% 40%
10 years 10 years
T+ +4F
4.82% 3%
1.13% 3.21%

TEHR 8 TR IR LR bR At B
(VA8 P4 2 D8 7 25 I 57
HIFtE)  BERARAAD
BRI BRI IR 2 TEHIE B
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EE - IRAEI8HAZ2HR
RZBE AU RFEZEFE
RERTE -
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30. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions and all those
divisions are located in the PRC. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following four reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

a)

Sales of EP products and equipment: this segment
sells EP products and equipment to external
customers. Currently the Group’s activities in this
segment are carried out in PRC only.

EP construction engineering projects: this segment
undertakes EP engineering construction projects for
external customers. Currently the Group’s activities
in this segment are carried out in the PRC only.

Provision of EP related professional services: this
segment provides EP related professional services
to external customers and for Group companies.
Currently the Group’s activities in this segment are
carried out in the PRC only.

Manufacture of EP construction materials: this
segment manufactures and sells EP construction
materials to external customers, main product is
wood wool cement board.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s CODM monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following basis:

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

30. HEREE

AEBIRAFBI D EEREER - A
BRERPAMNTE - &7 E5
BRAERRAFEAARE ZE
FEERRANBE2HRZERTA
BR—E AEEZ7 AT OER
ERDE - WEBERMEED S

FABRAT 2RI 2, EP -

s RREMMRBZHE : Ao
ERESNEBE P S IRIREE fB 2
R - BRIASKE LD BHEE
PEIRRER

o REERIRE: LD HBREI
MEFPRERIRERERE - B
A AN 5% Bt 0 B2 B R R
E R

o RHEBRFRERIXRRY : LD
ERASNERE P R AR EE T A
ARHRREBEERY - B
RIS B 1tk 7 BB Bl i R
EX

o BUARMREBEMK - RO A
ERASAEPHERRESE
ME - EBERBKEARGK
R e

a) ZOBMEE EERAHE

SLET D &P R IR K 0 BB 2 AL
BRME  AREZEFEE
REANBATELEEREAZE
B xE  BERAE



‘ 5an Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited 2R IRIREBERA A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

30. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investments
in financial assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
attributable to individual segments and short-
term bank loan managed directly by the respective
segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated and services rendered by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments. Inter-segment assistance provided by one
segment to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” that is, “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’
emoluments and auditor’'s remuneration and other
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s CODM
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.
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30. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 30. HEPERE ()

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) DHEE BEEREE ()
Information regarding the Group’s reportable HEZZT—FR=-T——F
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the +-—A=+—HLEFE HE
purposes of resources allocation and assessment TR BE & 73 80 72 35, 514 o R AR
of segment performance for the years ended 31 SEEREERRARE S
December 2012 and 2011 is set out below: REE A 23D EBE RS A

T
Sales of EP products EP construction Provision of EP related
and equipment engineering projects professional services Manufacture of
HERR BRER RERR EP construction materials Total
ERRBS I#%EH HRSRRE RERRREMH ait
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
I3-CF | 3% | IB-IF | CRF |IB-IF | Z2—F | IB-IF | 3£ | IB-ZF | I3

RMB'000 | RMBO0O | RMB000 | RVBOOO | RMB'000 | RMBOOD | RMB'000 | RMBOOO | RMB'000 | RMBI0D
ABWFR | ARBTR | ARRTR | ARETL | ARRTR | ARRTTL | ARRFR | ARBTR | ARWIR | ARETR

Reportable segment revenue  RESEZF4)

from external customer A2HPPRA 402,069 | 432,167 6,068 37,193 1,602 6,666 199 - | 410838 | 47602
Reportable segment BE G

profit(loss) &7/(B8)

(adjusted EBITDA) (A= 7EBITDA) | 65,021 56,379 | (20493 (1070) 188 3771 (8,828) (933) | 35,888 58,147
Depreciation and ENFEREH

amortisation for the year 1,218 2914 1,509 1,387 - - 8,443 3,072 11,170 7323
Reportable segment assets A2 HATEE 345,210 313,747 158,593 170,317 3,172 4615 360,503 290,548 867,478 779,227

Additions to non-current FRRE
segment assets during FRANPEE
the year 692 580 - - - - 79,685 92,563 80,377 93,143

Reportable segment liabilites A 2HHPEfE 256,843 | 159,356 7,147 71,793 10,036 9,748 4,382 1850 | 348,908 | 242747
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30. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 30. BT (&)
b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, b) HWEHRDIPUWA - HBFIHE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities B -EEREBZYE
2012 2011
—E——%F —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TT ARETTT
Revenue Ka
Reportable segment revenue REINPE PR
from external customers A] 239 BUA 410,838 476,026
Profit & F
Reportable segment profit derived JREINEBEFH)
from external customers A 235 20 m A 35,888 58,147
Other revenue and other net U A R B U
income 93 7,508
Depreciation and amortisation ITE K B (14,230) (10,273)
Finance costs BB R AR (976) (537)
Unallocated head office and RAOTBE R IERT
corporate expenses (48,041) (34,924)
Consolidated (loss)/profit BRELAIAR G
before taxation (FE18),/ %7 (27,266) 19,986
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AI2MOEEE 867,478 779,227
Non-current financial assets ERBETRMEE 9,000 9,000
Unallocated head office and ROMBARTCEEE
corporate assets 727,682 727,709
Consolidated total assets MEREE 1,604,160 1,515,936
Liabilities A&\
Reportable segment liabilities A2®moFEaE 348,908 242,747
Current tax liabilities BIEARIE B E 9,094 14,977
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE 13,272 6,566
Unallocated head office and KOBBTRCEERE
corporate liabilities 47,615 37,172
Consolidated total liabilities LMemaE 418,889 301,462
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30. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

31.

b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from sales of EP
products and equipment of approximately
RMB402,969,000 (2011: RMB432,167,000) are
revenues of approximately RMB67,549,000 (2011:
RMB27,897,000) which arose from sales to the
Group’s largest customer. One single customer
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for
2012 (No other single customers contributed 10% or
more to the Group’s revenue for 2011).

Geographical information

The Group’s turnover and results from operations
mainly derived from activities in the PRC. All material
non-current asset of the Group were located in the
PRC during the year. Accordingly, no geographical
information is provided.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

a)

A bank deposit of a subsidiary of approximately
RMB16,000,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB10,000,000) was pledged to secure a banking
facility of approximately RMB4,000,000 (2011:
RMB26,416,000) granted to the subsidiary.

A bank deposits of a subsidiary of approximately
RMB2,500,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB1,060,000) was pledged to a bank as security in
respect of banking facility granted to the subsidiary.

A building of a subsidiary with carrying amount of
approximately RMB801,800 (2011: RMB Nil) as at 31
December 2012 was pledged to secure a bank loan
of approximately RMB9,000,000 (2011: RMB Nil)
granted to the subsidiary.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

30. F#BEWE (M)

b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) During the two years ended 31 December 2012 and a)
2011, in addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group entered into the following related party
transactions:
Relationship with Nature of
Name of related party related party transaction
WEALRB HREALTZRAE XHLE
Wuxi Xin Wei High A company of which Receipt of
Temperature Ceramics Mr. Jiang Quanlong, rental income
Co., Ltd. a director of the Company, ¥WE £ WA
EHTRRAEE is also a director
ARAR ARRESERELE
TEEESEZ DA
Osram A company of which Payment of
Bl RIEA Mr. Jiang Quanlong rental expenses
a director of the Company, X1 &R 5
is also a director
ARREZERELE
TEEESEZ DA
Purchase of lands
BETH
AGC A company of which Proceeds on
JBREF Mr. Jiang Quanlong disposal of
a director of the Company, prepaid lease
is also a director payment
RAREFERELLE HEBNHEETIE L
TEFEZ 2T Figs0R
Proceeds on
disposal of
buildings
HEBFEHE
b)  Remuneration for key management personnel of the b)

Group, including amounts paid to the company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 52 A fE BB T
Equity compensation benefits P& A i B 1 )

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 5(b)).

32. MEALEXS

REBEE_ZT——FR-_FT——
F+-_A=+—HIEMEF

S BRRZEV KR H AR
MR EE 2 R 5 RAEFIN R
§ BEI NABEALR

The Group

*EE

2012 2011
~B-F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
53 53
(9) (18)
(1,682) -
- 10,671
- 6,100

AEETEZEBAB ZHM
(RIS E 2N FAR
REEZER) #FwT

2012 2011
e | -—= =&
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTR AEEFTL
2,002 1,513

613 =

2,615 1,513

Fam It ATE TR

(RMEE5(0)) °
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. #&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREIE
The Group The Company
%M /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
& | T——F| ZB-ZF| T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETE | AR®TR | ARETR
Capital expenditure BBETHSEZE
contracted but not HESKEENNG e
provided for in the e B BRI
financial statements:
— in respect of the — WEME
acquisition of = RS
property, plant and
equipment 12,690 75,464 - -
- in respect of injection EELENEIES
of share capital TE
of a subsidiary 73,538 74,136 73,538 74,136
86,228 149,600 73,538 74,136

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under operating leases in respect of
the leasing of premises and equipment which fall due

as follows:

Within one year
In second to

fifth year inclusive
More than five years

—FR

F_FEFERF
(REERMF)

BENE

(b) REEEEE

FREMEZEEA

REBERR - AEERART]
AHEEMEMREREEEH
EMARRR N RIEHEER
B AEBERRERNT

The Group The Company
F5E 4T

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—CF | T——F| Z8-ZF| T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTR | ARETT | ARWTR | ARETR
7 810 7 791
13 159 13 84
- 805 - -
84 1,774 84 875

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group and the Company for certain of its
office and factory premises. Leases and rentals are
negotiated and fixed for periods of 3 years (2011: 3
to 49 years). None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

LEHENTIEAEERAR
AEETHAER I HMME
EizHE -  BOLRHES TR
BEFETE 0 AHRE (ZT—
—F : 3F49F) - MEHER
RS -
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33. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
Included in the above are future minimum lease

payments with related company of approximately
RMB: Nil (2011: RMB899,000) which fall due as

follows:

Within one year —F R

In second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFRF
(BEEEMSF)

More than five years AFENUE

The related company is a company of which Mr.
Jiang Quanlong, a director of the Company, is also a
director.

The Group as lessor

The Group had contracted with the tenant, a
related company of the Group, for the following
non-cancellable future minimum lease payments

receivable:
Within one year —FRN
In second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEERF

(BREEMSF)

33. i (&)

(b)

REHEERE (8)

Ll EHERERRENAR
BET(ZE——F: ARK
899,0007T) HY @ & 1 7 K 2K
HEBEMNK - B HIBERN
T -

The Group
*EE

2012 2011
—Z2——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTT AR¥EFTT
- 19
- 75
- 805
- 899

MEARA—EAATEER
RELETETES 2 AT o

FREMERSHEA
AEEDEBERS (RNEHEEE
X)) BLLAT A AT FE R
REERSHRETLAL

The Group
*xEH

2012 2011
—$—=%| -T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIT
280 53
225 18

505 71
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COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
Included in the above is future minimum lease

payments receivable from related company of
approximately RMB18,000 (2011: RMB71,000):

Within one year —FR
In second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF
(BEBERSF)

The related company is a company of which Mr.
Jiang Quanlong, a director of the Company, is also a
director.

(c) The Company had no operating lease commitments
as a lessor as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has provided product warranties to its
customers in respect of construction work completed
and certain of its EP products sold for a warranty period
ranging from 6 months to 2 years after project completion
or product delivery. At the same time, the Group has also
received warranties in respect of those construction work
and equipment supplied from its sub-contractors and
suppliers. The directors of the Company believe that the
amount of crystallised warranty liabilities, if any, in excess
of the amount covered by the warranties given by the
sub-contractors and suppliers, will not have a material
adverse effect on the overall financial position or results of
operations of the Group.

33.

34.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

HiE ()
(b) EEBEEEE (H)
PR EHEREBRENAR

#18,000T (ZZFE——4F : A
R #71,00070) 2 BEARX

R AR AR TH & FE WRIE
The Group
*xEH

2012 2011
—Z2——F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTIT
18 53
- 18
18 71

MEAT A -—HAANESE
REEEETEEEE Y AT -

() WZT—=—FR=-ZT—&F+
—A=+—8 " RxDFAHEAH
A4 40 4 7L AR

BRAR

AEERCKRTEETREREEY
CETRREMREEFREHER
RE REFHIBEREIESD
RERAANBAEMFAZF - R
B AEETEBEABHLHEE
BAATIR R BRI R EREZF
ER® - ARREFHEREEE
ZEREHE (A) BAaAan kit
EREMEHREMS 2SR - KT
SUHAKEBRBYBMALEER
RBERERNTFIZE -
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35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 35. EXEHR
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital REBEEREARA,BEEZBENRE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as NEBRHEBRBEFBREEE
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to B AR EE R R R # 5 1E
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its & RAKREREURE ZBHK -
shareholders.
The management actively and regularly reviews and EEERG N TR EARNEEET
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance BARER  UERSKRRDB RIS
between the higher shareholder returns that might AT AR 2 Rim e BK T B
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the i 2 BEARRR R 2 17 e RARFE 2
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital AU & - I35 38 3 AR R 35 A%
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure BT EBRERERNERE
through the amount of dividend payment to shareholders HAZ - FR BERZEFEER
or raise new debt financing. No changes were made in the BURIEL {28 o
objectives or policies during the year.
The management monitors the Group’s capital structure on EIEEREREEFERERYE
the basis of a net debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, RAEEZEREE - Bt %
the Group defines net debt as total debt (which includes B S E A FHEAGRBRE (B
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other BERREE EBRNEZREMK
payables and deposits received and receipts in advance H R B WE e RTEW K INIE R 5T
plus unaccrued proposed dividends minus cash and cash DR ERRERERBRELSEE) °
equivalents).
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2012 and RZE—ZFR=ZFT—F+=A
2011 was as follows: =+—HEREEFEAT :
The Group The Company
*5H 347
2012 2011 2012 2011
- | —T——%| ZB-ZF| —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARETT | AR®TR | ARETR
Current liabilities: nBaf
Short-term bank loan BHRTER 14,000 = - =
Trade and other payables [ENE 5 REMFUR 173,852 101,663 4,690 1,041
Deposits received and Btz e RIEHGR
receipts in advance 208,671 178,256 - -
Total debt Bafs 396,523 279,919 4,690 1,041
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & R Z [
H4IEE (564,078) (606,815) (207) (5,393)
Net debt BEFE (167,555) (326,896) 4,483 (4,352)
Total equity BB 1,185,271 1,214,474 738,651 819,115
Net debt-to-equity ratio B = %E N/ARE R N/AT i FB - |  NATER

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

AR R S AE (AT EL P B A AL R S

HMEEEARERS] -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risks.

a)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statements
of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and amounts due from related
parties which are disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
normally due within 30-60 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

36. &R TR

AEEBEREXRGHAAZEE
nBEE  MEXREERR AL
BEBTXMANBERRRERS
REEBZERAR -

AEEBEHAcRITARAEER Rt
BRIk A AERR L mER) -

a)

FERR

RZE—=—F+=_RA=+—
H ZANEERREIES
REVBRAIRTSEREE
KRR B (A8 $0 Bk (E (] Rk (B £
1#) o

AEEZEERRIERER
ZEPHRREMEBOREZ
FE Y & 5 AR R e FE M B 75 3R
He EHERETHREZEE
BE UHEERZEFEER

B o

HEKRESERME @ ARF
HER-—FLBALEEZMR
BEPERETEENMG - &7F
HEBRBEPZELRZE
BRI ZEMNES  XEE
HEFPZERBBREME
RERE - EHBUWEFR B E
= A T HB0-60K A EI B -
E—RBEAT  AKETEE
BEFEREMR® -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

a)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. Taking into account
the creditworthiness of the Group’s customers,
the credit risk measures and the historical levels
of the bad debts, the Directors consider that such
concentration of credit risk would result in significant
credit default exposure to the Group. At the end of
the reporting period, 12.16% (2011: 4.07%) and
23.55% (2011: 13.70%) of trade receivables due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively arose from the sales
of EP products and equipment segment.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from subsidiaries and other receivables.
The Company reviews the recoverable amounts of
individual debts at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 18.

Amounts due from related parties are regularly
reviewed and settled unless the amounts are
specifically intended to be long-term in nature.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation and
high credit ratings.

Credit risk associated with an advance to a
local government authority is low because the
counterparty is PRC local government. The carrying
amount of the amount advanced to the local
government authority amounted to RMB97,230,000
(2011: RMB97,230,000).

36. &R TR ()

a)

FERE ()

RERESERME  A5H
2 EERREFEZBREEFZ
BRI R 2 - BRELERT
BTz EYRREEHEER
EREETE ZEINEAEE
BEZEE  ZERBREER
BAZERKE EZRA -
hESEFEERRESEHAEE
BREANEEERER - R ®
HHR  REHERRERR
BEIHzERUAEBRRAR
FERAAXEFEDRERKE S
B 12.16% (Z & — — F
4.07%) K23.55% (— & ——
#F:13.70%) °

ARRZEERBTIEEREA
TA FE Y 8 2 R 3R IR e E A FE
WHKIR - RARIRE®E R
RS ERIER 2 AT YR Bl & 58
VAREGR B B] o (2] & B F HE
EREERE -

FEAEEEEZERE ZER
HNEEZEERBRZEZ S
WEEE NI FE18 ©

FEARRETT IR G E HETE
BINEE - BRIFRFRER R
HBERBRIERIBRIN o

nBEEERRER AR
HOTRAEARHEEREEE
ARV IRTT -

EETEMNE B FIFIRIEZ
EERBRARK  TYEREH A
AR E R o TR E MR
HPRBEBZEAEAARE
97,230,000 (=T — — 4 :
AR#97,230,0007T) °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

36. &#@T R ()

Interest rate risk b) REEE
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk and fair AEBZRESRENERR R
value interest rate risks relate primarily to variable- AFEFERBREZEDBIHEE
rates and fixed rates respectively of pledged bank EIRRITF - RITEHRRE
deposits, bank balances and short-term bank loan. HIRTTERZIZEBFE R EE
The Group’s normal policy is not to use any derivative MEBEHE - —MmE  A5E
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. ZBURTHBEMITES B
However, the management of the Company will SREF R o MM E - K
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure REEREREZREEHPEKXN
should the need arises. The Group’s interest rate MERR  AEEHEEEE
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) A RBORE ST ()
below.
i) Interest rate profile ) FIEERR
The following table details the interest rate T 3R AN 5 B A 18 K
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of RS AR AR o
the reporting period.
2012 2011
~2-CF —E——F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERfE BBRAI%
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Net fixed rate borrowing B EFIE &R PHE
Bank loan-unsecured PITE — EIEH 7.2% 5,000 - -
Net variable rates FHTEERSHE
borrowing
Bank loans-secured RITER — A 6.56% -
7.216% 9,000 - -
Total net borrowings BEFFH 14,000 -
Net fixed rates borrowings [ Fi| & & 2R 4B
as a percentage of FEETEEN
total interest-bearing B
borrowings 36% -

The Company has no significant interest rate
risk at the end of the reporting period (2011:
Nil).

AR B R S H R A A
EREAFEEAR (—2
—— )
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s loss after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB5,638,000 (2011:
RMB6,068,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the end of the next
reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2011.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to fixed rate bank borrowings. The
directors consider the fair value interest rate
risk is insignificant to the Group as most of
them are short-term.

36. &#@T R ()

b)

M=EE ()
i) RS

RZTE—=—F+=-A=
+—8 - EEET EAT
BEMEBHBEFTE
BARAT MXLE L
F+,/ T 1001 £ 25 i
SAEE KRB REBE
N AR i F) 380k
4 A R ¥5,638,0007T
(ZE——F: AR®
6,068,0007T) ° & &= 2
H 3 p g r e = F xR
BEITE -

PR RERE DT ITREZ
MEBEHDNRERR
TE - WEERABRZHA
FEZHFTEEMTE
AAS 2 FIZRERR - 100
(BB P =g P ]
EEEREE TERS
HIRMEAN R AEA
RREBMEZFMGE - =
T——FNDMELAM
Rl Ay BT -

AEEZ RFENKE
RERETFBRTER
BB -EFER/BERK
BoEXBEHMEE -
AEBZRFENER
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c)

[

T+ -_A=t+—HItFE

36. &R TR ()

Liquidity risk c) RBESLER
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter nBESRRIIIERNEERE
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with TEBAUReRN RS H M
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering CHEELBEIH 2 CMAR
cash or another financial asset as they fall due. The EBRBIR#BENRR - K&
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and BB AT B Al LA
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance BrzrBEeHTkKRHETE
with lending covenants and to ensure that it REIBE BN - NERAKE
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate HRFTNIRSREEREERIR
committed lines of funding from banks to meet its THEGERHEENES  NER
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. HEHEBRAZRDESS
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAFIAEERARAZ
maturities at the end of the reporting period of FITESRMBERRERRY
the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative BRTNERHR - TEREH
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual FIEARBIER R (BRERIE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments BT R (WA ZEFE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, AR REBRRNHIRITHR)
based on rates current at the end of the reporting AEZFBMR) REAEE KR
period) and the earliest date the Group and the RNABI A REBN R T AH
Company can be required to pay. FTE o
2012 2011
=% =
Total Total
contractual contractual
undiscounted Within 1 undiscounted Within 1
cash flow year or cash flow year or
Carrying &M% ondemand | Carying  A#HE  ondemand
amount FER  —FAE amount RUE  —EAL
FEE HRekas BXE REE FRengsm ZRE
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARRTR | A\REBTT ARETT ARETR
The Group 350
Short-term bank loan BHRTER 14,000 14,000 14,000 = = =
Trade and other payables  EREZ 5 R EMZE 169,556 169,556 169,556 97,280 97,280 97,280
183,556 183,556 183,556 97,280 97,280 97,280
The Company b3/
Accruals and other payables fEst B REMEMFIE 4,690 4,690 4,690 1,041 1,041 1,041
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c)

d)

36. &#@T R ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) c) nBELEK (&)
The Group held cash and bank balance amounting to AEBR-_ZE——F+=H8
approximately RMB564,078,000 as at 31 December =t+—HFEEZ2HRE KRBT
2012 (2011: approximately RMB606,815,000), which 48R 59 A R %564,078,000
it considers is adequate for it to manage its liquidity T(ZE——F: AR
requirements. 606,815,0007T) - AEER A
HEUNEBRERBESET K -
Currency risk d E%Ek
The Group’s is exposed to currency risk primarily AEBEPR2EERBREER
through sales and purchases that are denominated B R AT P R ID BE & HE LA
in a currency other than the functional currency I EBFECEBERSEH
of the operations to which they relate. The Group Z R o ANEEE B RSN
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging HARBE AT BEESE
policy. However, the management monitors foreign TONER R - WK ERERE
exchange exposure and will consider hedging R R E RSN R
significant foreign currency exposure if necessary.
i) Exposure to currency risk ) EEEEmELE
The following table details the Group’s and TREFINAREE RARAF]
the Company’s exposure at the end of the PG ERAER 2 BB E
reporting period to currency risk arising from b BEARRTDEAELSE
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in KEFR 2 TREE B LASN
a currency other than the functional currency of ZEETHEZERREE
the entity to which they relate. REEmELE -
The Group The Company
50 47
2012 2011 2012 2011
-2 3——f -
HK$000 AUD'000  EUR'000 | HK$000  AUD000  EURD00 | AUD'000 | AUD000
Tén TAxr TR | TEr  TEr  TEn | TR | ThEr
Trade and other EE ARl
receivables E - - - 2153 - 977 - =
Cash and bank balances R RE(T4# | 10,285 - - | 16870 - - - 1
Trade and other payables ~ ERBSREM
E - - - (o = - - -
Overall net exposure TEEREE 10,235 - - | 17749 - 77 - 1
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—ZT——H+_A=1+—HIFE

36. &#@T R ()
d EK¥ER (&)

i) Sensitivity analysis i) BEEST
The following table indicates the approximate TRERRIRREHRR
change in the Group’s loss after tax for the REBZ2HEFARTEE
year and retained profits and other components BRRE R RiEZEH
of equity in response to reasonably possible HHEMERASEAERE
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which PN EN Tl e
the Group has significant exposure at the end BT 2MNEE -
of the reporting period date.
2012 2011
Z§-C “5——F
Increase/  Effect on profit Increase/  Effect on profit
(decrease)  aftertaxand  Effect on other (decrease) aftertaxand  Effect on other
in foreign  retained profits  components of inforeign  retained profits  components of
exchangerates ~ HBR&RT equity | exchangerates  HBHEET equity
SEES REEEH HEaA HEER RREEH HEREf
#in/(RY) k414 BozvE | N/ 7E A7
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN:3 2 ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
The Group  F%[H
HKD AT 1% 83 - 1% 145 -
(1%) (83) - (1%) (145) -
AUD B 1% - - 1% - -
(1%) - - (1%) - -
EUR B 1% - - 1% 80 -
(1%) - - (1%) (80) -

RmERR - NRAY
BEEAEEER (ZF—
—F |-

The Company has no significant currency risk at
the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchanges rates over the period until the end
of the next reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

PA b 8RR E 0 i B R
RINBE RSB F AR
BEHR AERARAK
SEREXRGFENS R
T RMEENE R
B FHMBHREERE
HEETERSEHRLE
HEINEERSERE
AREMEBNFG - —
T——FNDMEAM
Rl R E AT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the effect is immaterial
at the end of the reporting period. RMB
denominated the operations of the Group
and the exposure on other currencies is
insignificant.

e) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the
following financial instruments.

i)

Liquid or/and short-term assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities
that are liquid or having a short-term maturity,
it is assumed that the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values. The assumption
is applied to trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank loans and cash and cash
equivalents without a specific maturity.
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37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

i)

ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
to sell is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. During the year, no
impairment loss of non-financial assets was
recognised. At the year ended 31 December
2012, the total amount of non-financial assets
is RMB351,912,000 (2011: RMB292,690,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. Management will reassess the estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Carrying
amount of inventories as at 31 December 2012
are approximately RMB178,896,000 (2011:
RMB81,156,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iii)

iv)

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and the current
market conditions. Management reassesses the
provision at the end of each reporting period.
Carrying amount of trade and other receivables
as at 31 December 2012 are approximately
RMB480,896,000 (2011: RMB514,365,000).

Construction contacts

As explained in policy notes 2(i) and
(2)(g)(ii) revenue and profit recognition on an
incompleted project is dependent on estimating
the total outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on
the Group’s recent experience and the nature
of the construction activities undertaken by the
Group, the Group makes estimates of the point
at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result,
until this point is reached the amounts due
from customers for contract work as disclosed
in note 25 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of total cost or revenue may be higher
or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.
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37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
v) Warranty provisions

As explained in note 34, the Group does not
make provision for product warranties it gives
on sales of its EP products and provision of EP
construction engineering projects, taking into
account the Group’s recent claim experience
as the Group has also received warranties
in respect of those construction work and
equipment supplied from its sub-contractors
and suppliers. It is not indicative of future
claims that it will receive in respect of past
sales.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time an asset
is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the asset,
as well as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in the market demands or service
output of the asset. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives continued to be valid.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

1)

jii)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments have any indication of impairment.
The recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments
have been determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement of the future tax treatment of certain
transactions and the interpretation of tax
rules. The Group carefully evaluates the tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislation.

Withholding tax on the distributable profits of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries

On 16 March 2007, National People’s Congress
approved the Enterprises Income Tax Laws
of the PRC (the “New EIT Laws”) which was
effective from 1 January 2008. According to
the relevant regulations of the New EIT Laws,
when a foreign investment enterprise distributes
dividends out of the profits earned from 1
January 2008 onwards to its foreign investors,
they are subject to Enterprise Income Tax. The
applicable corporate income tax rate varies
with the origin of the overseas investors.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

iv)  Withholding tax on the distributable profits of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries (Continueq)

The Group has made provision for withholding
tax on dividends expected to be remitted from
group entities incorporated in the PRC, based
on the Group’s general dividend policy for
the net profits generated by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries after 1 January 2008. The Group
provided withholding tax for such undistributed
profits as deferred tax liabilities. The directors of
the Company will regularly review the dividend
distribution policy of its subsidiaries from time
to time.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The director considers the immediate and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Praise Fortune
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
This entity does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
disposed of the motor vehicles with a total carrying
amount of RMB73,000 for considerations of RMB419,000
to offset the trade payables and other payables. Further
details of the disposals are set out in notes 14.

There was no non-cash transaction occurred during the
current reporting period.

37.

38.

39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItEE

40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED  40. EffiERBE_S——¢
HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE +ZA=Z+—HILEEHX
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER E?&Zﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁfg’ﬂﬁ%ﬂ*
2012 BHEEENZTREE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSHMBHRREMBE  FF
HKICPA has issued the following amendments and new SETMAEER/M TIHERT A K
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended FIER BEREREBEZT—Z=F
31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted in TZA=FT—BLEFEHRESR
these financial statements. These include the following MARZETFRER AR - %F
which may be relevant to the Group. & RT 7 K2 Bl B2 45 7] Ak B4 7K £ [ 48

BT FNERT AN AR o
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial BB ER] Edllps e
statements — Presentation E15% (BFTA) — Z25EAM
of items of other ZHKAZ
comprehensive income' HE!
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial BERBRE 4RE BT R
statements? AR 21057
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements? BETBHRE HEZRHE?
AERIE 1158
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other BRI ®RE WEEMELE .
entities? YERIZE125] a2
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement? BENBmE NEF=E?
AR 1358
Revised HKAS 27 Separate financial statements KIEFTRAS CERVR e
(2011)2 FTERIE 275 (Z2—%)2
Revised HKAS 28 Investments in associates and REFIEBE NBERRRS
joint ventures? AR 52857 Bh¥EZ
®&?
Revised HKAS 19 Employee benefits? KISEI v BB EERA?
AERIZE195%
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle? ARV BMELEN —TENFES
T ——FE A FE
Amendments to Financial instruments: BENBWmE SR TH :
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Disclosures — HERIZE 7R WE—HE
Offsetting financial assets (&&TA) — IR
and financial liabilties? BENTRE
i=lie
Amendments to Financial instruments: BB AR TRTA :
HKAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting 325 251 — 1K
financial assets and financial (BETA) ERMEERS
liabilties® NS
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments* BB BHRE SRt T A

AR ZE Q5%
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40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 40.

HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2012 (Continued)

Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosure*
Amendments to Consolidated Financial
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Statements, Joint
and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition

Guidance?
Amendments to Investment Entities®
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of a
Surface Mine?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Financial Summary

MBRE

Following is a summary of the consolidated results and the TRAREBREE A EBBFREIR N
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last HTAEEGR V GAXERGAEE
five financial years prepared on a basis as stated in the notes HEERE

below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

maxkiA

For the year ended 31 December
BE+_BA=1+—HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008
22— ZZ-TF ZZTHhF ZITITN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT

476,026 646,708 608,972 593,765

19,986 110,654 125,143 117,563
(11,162)  (35,999)  (37,385)  (41,428)

2012

RMB’000

ARBTT

Turnover e 410,838
(Loss)/profit before taxation B BiAT (E18) /& A (27,266)
Income tax expenses TSR (5,984)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B1]),/ & (33,250)

8,824 74,655 87,758 76,135

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITY

2012
k- St 3
RMB’000
UN: &

Total non-current assets FRBEELE 360,912
Total current assets REEERE 1,243,248

FEREHAR

As at 31 December
®+=-A=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008
—E——% ZZ-TF ZTTHhF ZTTN\F
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

301,690 189,307 61,546 61,710
1,214,246 1,253,725 1,344,862 1,293,881

Total assets BERE 1,604,160

1,615,936 1,443,032 1,406,408 1,355,591

Total liabilities BERE (418,889)

(301,462)  (237,207)  (246,581)  (288,438)
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